PACKAGING EXCELLENCE,

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

AG I SOMANY IMPRESA

GREENPAC
——




Contents

01-29 Corporate Overview

02
04
06
07
08
10

18
20
22
24
26

Chairman and Managing Director’'s Message

Key Performance Indicators
About Us

Digitalising Operations

Our Business Model
Business Review

Packaging Responsibly
Environment
Social - Corporate Social Responsibility
Social - People
Governance - Board of Directors

30-115 Statutory Reports

30
38
58
78

Management Discussion and Analysis
Directors’ Report

Report on Corporate Governance
Business Responsibility and
Sustainability Report

116 Financial Statements
185 Notice

- A

To learn more about the Company, visit:
https://www.agigreenpac.com

Key Highlights of FY 2023-24

?2,445 crore

Total Income
6.0% Y-0-Y &

?58 8 crore

EBITDA
20.7% Y-o-Y &

?340 crore

Profit Before Tax
11.7% Y-o0-Y &



https://www.agigreenpac.com

PACKAGING EXCELLENCE,
RESPONSIBLY.

At AGI Greenpac, we redefine packaging, elevating

it beyond mere functionality. Our vision is to drive
packaging excellence through a harmonious blend of
innovation, environmental stewardship, and exceptional
customer experience.

Driven by a passionate team, we create packaging
solutions that safeguard products, enhance brand
value and elevate customer experiences. Through
rigorous testing, deep market research, and a
relentless pursuit of quality, we deliver packaging that
exceeds expectations - in functionality, aesthetics,
and environmental performance. Aligned with global
sustainability standards, our practices, from sourcing
to production, demonstrate our commitment to
customers and the planet. By embracing cutting-
edge technologies and circular economy principles,
we minimise waste, optimise resources, and

foster innovation.

Further, we are taking strides to reduce our carbon
footprint by 2030 and transitioning to renewable energy
sources to achieve net zero by 2050.

At AGI Greenpac, we aim to build a future where
packaging is a positive force for business and the
environment by meeting today's needs and creating
a better world for future generations.



AGI Greenpac Limited

Chairman and Managing Director's Message

Our Journey
towards Excellence

Dear Shareholders,

| am proud of the consistent progress
we have achieved in over the past
fiscal years. Our commitment to
operational excellence and strategic
investments has positioned us at the
forefront of the industry.

Operating Landscape

Despite global challenges and
geopolitical tensions, the Indian
economy demonstrated resilience,
emerging as the world's fastest-
growing major economy.

Substantial government investments
in infrastructure and progressive
economic reforms have created

a favourable environment

for businesses.

Evolving consumer preferences,
increased disposable incomes and
changing lifestyles are leading to

a surge in demand for premium
packaging, particularly glass, which
is valued for its sustainability and
aesthetics. The expansion of the
food and beverage sector, especially
spirits and beer, coupled with

the premiumisation of cosmetics
and perfumes, has further
stimulated demand for high-quality,
aesthetically appealing packaging.
Moreover, the increasing focus

on sustainability has prompted
consumers and companies to seek
packaging options that minimise
environmental impact.

Performance during
FY 2023-24

The year saw us deliver steady
financial performance. Revenue
from Operations expanded by 6% to
reach ¥2,421 crore. EBITDA reported
a Y-o-Y growth of 21% to 3588

crore, boosting the EBITDA margin
by 290 bps to 24%. PBT increased
12% Y-0-Y to ¥340 crore from %304
crore, despite the higher interest
and depreciation costs, owing to the
commissioning of our new specialty
glass manufacturing plant.

Investments in advanced
manufacturing, operational
excellence and product mix
supported our growth and market
expansion strategy.

Our commitment to operational
excellence enabled us to achieve
~95% capacity utilisation. Effective
cost management and optimised



resource allocation contributed

to increased daily production and
maintained profitability, despite a
planned furnace relining shutdown.

| am proud of the recognition our
Company has received through
numerous awards, including

the prestigious 'Supplier of the
Year' Award from Diageo India
for the second consecutive year.
These accolades recognises

our positioning as a preferred
partner for our customers in

the industry, a testament to our
team's commitment to delivering
exceptional value.

Progressing Responsibly

We remain steadfast in building
a sustainable future with a vision
to achieve net zero emission
operations by 2050. To realise
this, we have established clear
milestones for 2030.

We have expanded our renewable
energy portfolio, including a 2.8 MW
rooftop solar plant at the Hyderabad
unit, which will increase our installed
solar power capacity to 19.56 MW by
2025. In FY 2023-24, this transition to
renewable sources has resulted in an
annual reduction of ~22,970 tonnes of
CO, emissions.

To further minimise our
environmental footprint, we have
implemented various initiatives.
These include installing electrostatic
precipitators to remove SOx and
particulate matter, investing in

R&D for innovative glass, and
setting targets to increase cullet
(broken glass) utilisation and reduce
product returns. Additionally, we
have adopted sustainable practices
such as rainwater harvesting, zero
liguid discharge policies and water
conservation measures.

Our commitment to sustainable
waste management is evident in
our dedication to reusing 100% of
production waste and recycling
~2.0 lakh tonnes of cullet annually.

We aim to achieve 100% recyclable
packaging by 2030 and further
increase recyclable cullet utilisation
to 50% by 2027.

Our commitment to excellence and
sustainability has been recognised
by the industry. We received the
Total Cost Management Award in the
Manufacturing Champion category

Corporate Overview

at the 227 Cll Cost Congress and the
'Energy Efficient Unit’ award from

Cll at the 24t National Awards for
Excellence in Energy Management
2023 for our Bhongir plant.

Digitalisation

Innovation is at the core of our digital
strategy. Al-driven insights have
transformed operations, enabling

us to optimise production, predict
maintenance needs, and make
informed decisions in real time.

We integrated advanced Al

tools, including the Production
Planning and Control (PPC) tool

to streamline production, Sales
Force Automation (SFA) for deeper
marketing insights, a low-code
platform to accelerate digitisation,
Social Intranet to increase employee
engagement, streamlined New
Product Development in PLM for
customer alignment and satisfaction
through feedback integration and
implemented Al-based computer
vision technologies to identify

and rectify defects. By harnessing
technology, we will continue to
elevate customer experiences,
expand our market reach, and solidify
our position as an industry leader.

Giving Back to the
Community

We are dedicated to creating

a positive impact on the
communities where we operate.

Our CSRinitiatives extend beyond
philanthropy, focusing on sustainable
development through rural
upliftment, healthcare, education,
and environmental conservation.

By partnering with local stakeholders
and NGOs, we empower individuals,
from farmers to youth, through
programmes like skill development,
infrastructure support, and
healthcare initiatives. The plantation
project in Telangana is a prime
example of how we create value by
supporting local farmers.

Enhancing
People-centricity

Our success is built on the
foundation of our dedicated
workforce. We cultivate a culture
of collaboration, innovation, and
continuous improvement, where
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every individual is empowered to
reach their full potential. By investing
in comprehensive development
programmes and leveraging
technology, we create a dynamic and
fulfilling work environment.

Way Forward

As a trusted partner of our
customers, we consistently meet
their evolving demands and are
well-positioned for growth. We

are strengthening our leadership
position in the beverage sector,
expanding our presence in the
pharmaceutical and food segments,
and diversifying our product range to
include higher-margin offerings.

We are committed to optimising

our operations through a focus

on efficiency and cost reduction.

By identifying and eliminating
bottlenecks within our plants, we are
streamlining production processes.
Additionally, we are leveraging
Industry 4.0 technologies to enhance
our lean manufacturing principles,
further improving productivity and
reducing lead times.

The state-of-the-art specialty glass
plant, which commenced commercial
production in 2023, is a cornerstone
of our growth strategy. We are
expanding our product portfolio to
include higher value-added offerings
for cosmetics, perfumery and
premium alco-bev segments. We

are also actively exploring export
opportunities and targeting new
market segments to leverage the full
potential of this strategic investment.

I thank our dedicated team members
for their hard work and our valued
partners for their continued support.
I am also grateful to the shareholders
and Board of Directors for their
ongoing trust and guidance. With

a strong foundation and a clear
strategic direction, | am confident in
our Company's ability to thrive in the
coming years.

Regards,

Sandip Somany
Chairman and Managing Director
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AGI Greenpac Limited

Key Performance Indicators

Showcasing
Consistent Growth

Total Income Revenue
(R in crore) (R in crore)
2,307 2,281
1,473 1,430
J J A L L A
o o
FY22 FY23 FY24 6.0% FY22 FY23 FY24 6.1%
EBITDA EBITDA Margin
(R in crore) (%)
588
488 21.5 21.4
307
o
FY22 FY23 FY24 20.7% FY22 FY23 FY24 290 BPS

A Y-0-Y growth
The above figures are for continuing operations only

04 Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.



Profit Before Tax

(R in crore)
304
179
FY22 FY23
Debt Equity Ratio
(times)
1.04
0.54
FY22 FY23

FY24

Corporate Overview
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PBT Margin
(%)
13.3
12.5
FY22 FY23

A

Return on Net Worth

(%)

171

211

FY22

Annual Report 2023-24

FY23

FY24
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AGI Greenpac Limited

About Us

A Legacy of

Packaging Excellence

Our journey commenced in 1981 with the acquisition of Associated
Glass Industries Limited (AGI). Recognising the evolving packaging
landscape, we strategically expanded our portfolio by acquiring Garden
Polymers Private Limited (GPPL), a PET bottle manufacturer. This
move enabled us to offer a range of value-added packaging solutions.
To further strengthen our market presence, we established a state-of-
the-art plant for producing security caps and closures under the AGI
Clozures brand. Our dedicated team and strong industry expertise,
combined with our commitment to quality, innovation, and customer
service, have solidified our position as a trusted partner for businesses
seeking reliable and sustainable packaging solutions.

@ AGI Glaspac

As a leading provider of
comprehensive glass packaging
solutions, we primarily catering

to the B2B market. With a

strong foothold across diverse
industries, we deliver tailored
packaging solutions that meet the
specific needs of our clients. Our
state-of-the-art specialty plant

in Bhongir produces premium
glass packaging for sectors like
cosmetics, perfumery, and candles.
We have expanded into the B2C
segment with our Sand Dunes and
GreenDrop brands.

Our R&D team focuses on creating
an innovative range of packaging
products, while the decoration unit
enhances product appeal through

a wide range of customisation
options. Together, they drive our
commitment to meet evolving
customer needs and industry trends.

@ AGI Plastek

We are a leading supplier of PET
packaging solutions, delivering
high-quality bottles that meet
stringent regulatory standards.
We cater to pharmaceuticals, alco
beverages, food and soft drinks,
personal care, agrochemicals, and
dairy sectors.

@ AGI Clozures

Specialising in producing
counterfeit-resistant security caps
and closures, we focus on the
alco-bev industry. With a team of
highly experienced and qualified
professionals, we leverage cutting
edge technologies to deliver top
tier products to our customers.
Since inception, we have rapidly
established ourselves as a leading
player, setting new standards for

quality and reliability in the market.

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.

40

Years of catering
diverse industries

>500

Institutional clients

7

Plants
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Digitalising Operations

Driving Efficiency

At AGI Greenpac, we embarked on a comprehensive digital transformation
journey during the year, leveraging cutting-edge technologies and data-
driven insights to streamline processes, enhance operational efficiency,
and deliver superior customer experiences.

By leveraging technology to drive operational efficiency and innovation, we are committed to delivering exceptional
products and services that exceed our customers' expectations and solidify our position as a leading partner in
the industry.

Innovation

Al-Powered Tools and
Continuous Learning

Achieved cost and
environmental benefits through
Al for anomaly detection,
furnace optimisation and
energy-tracking utility cockpits

Digitisation via Low-Code
Platform

Reduced native app
development time by 90%
with low-code apps, promoting
paperless initiatives and
streamlined workflows

Cost-Effective Production
Line Defect Identification

Enhanced defect detection on
the production line with
Al-based computer vision

Future Explorations and
Capability Building

Focusing on IDP with Al and
OCR, D2C strategies, operational
research tools, and paperless
factory implementation while
embracing Open Al Data
Science practices

Data Management and
Process Optimisation

Enhanced operational efficiency
by 35% with an enterprise

data lake and Master Data
Management, enabling
comprehensive data analysis

Automation and Process
Optimisation

Achieved 95% first-time quality
and projected 50-55% future cost
avoidance with Robotic Process
Automation (RPA) for job work
contracting and OCR-based
Airbill management

Advanced Predictive
Maintenance and Horizontal
Deployment

Anticipated equipment failures
with advanced predictive
maintenance and deployed
Industrial Internet of Things (lloT)
for seamless connectivity and
quality monitoring

Data-driven Decision Making
and Real-Time Insights

Replaced manual processes with
business intelligence tools and a
cloud-based data lake, providing
critical ORM metrics and quality

insights through dashboards

Annual Report 2023-24

Customer-centricity

New Product Development
(NPD) and Customer-
centricity

Streamlined NPD in Windchill
for customer alignment

and satisfaction through
feedback integration and
innovative solutions

Digital Empowerment
and Business Intelligence

Enhanced digital literacy with
roadshows and training, and
enabled data-driven decisions
with sales force automation and
Power Bl dashboards

Employee Development
and Engagement

Boosted productivity with
a learning management
system and social intranet
and promoted continuous
improvement with
360-degree feedback

Customer Engagement
and Service

Improved lead and query
management with sales force
and WhatsApp integration,
ensuring low TAT and enhanced
customer service

07



AGI Greenpac Limited

Our Business Model

Navigating Market Dynamics

Market Position

A leader in the packaging industry, N 8& N
we offer glass containers, PET bottles, / 7
and security caps and closures. Our
commitment to superior packaging
solutions ensures the highest

standards of quality and reliability.

Customers

MR EEANG SG Distribution Insights

R

Our seven state-of-the-art
manufacturing plants strategically
located in Telangana, Uttarakhand,
and Karnataka enable us to efficiently
serve diverse customer needs and
ensure timely deliveries across %
the country.

R&D Focus
Innovation is at the core of our

business. Our dedicated R&D team Sales Innovation
drives us forward, position -

rives us forward, positioning us as and Marketing and Intellectual
a future-ready leader in the industry. Capital

Workforce
iéj Our diverse team fuels our culture /N %

of innovation, inspiring us to
challenge the status quo and drive
positive change.

(=

i Manufacturing Product £ZX
Supplier Base Capabilities Development ”lffq'}
88 PP P P

S We partner with selected suppliers
who meet our stringent quality and
sustainability standards, ensuring
optimal material sourcing at
competitive costs.

@ Sustainable Approach

NS5 We optimise the use of natural
resource usage, actively reduce
carbon emissions, manage waste
and energy responsibly, and promote

the sustainable production of
environment-friendly products.

Vendors

08 Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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Creating Value Impacting Stakeholders

Shareholders and Investors e Customers
TWY  \We servea global base of

prestigious institutional
2 3 8 8 clients, being a preferred
? ‘I ‘I ? partner spanning alco-bev,
[ 5 crore - 5 pharmaceuticals, food and
EPS

soft drinks, cosmetics, and
perfume industries.

D Suppli
T588 crore T6 per/share A e engege e

.. with suppliers to ensure
EBITDA Dividend alignment with our quality

standards and Code
of Conduct guidelines,
fostering strong

4 2 5 1 crore C4 4 P 70 0 crore Fnavret:te;yh iglzssiynogn.d
PAT

Market Capitalisation

Total Income

2aq Workforce
UZIV  We prioritise employee
well-being, fostering
a supportive culture
with a strong focus
on work-life balance.
Manufacturing Output Our commitment
to diversity includes
empowering women
across all roles. We have
been recognised as a
'Great Place to Work'
1 754 1 1 892 for three consecutive
) I years, demonstrating
tonnes/day tonnes/annum ts commitment to
(including the newly operational employee satisfaction.
specialty glass plant at Bhongir)

AGI Glaspac AGI Plastek

Community

Through our CSR

AGI Clozures initiatives, we actively
promote social

R S cohesion, education,
852 million 205 million health, and sustainable
. . livelihoods, embodying
Pieces per annum Pieces per annum our role as a socially
(smaII CaPS) (|arge CaPS) conscientious

corporate citizen.

Annual Report 2023-24 09



AGI Greenpac Limited

Business Review

AGI Glaspac

L

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.




We manufacture premium and
specialty glass containers under
the brand AGI Glaspac and focus on
retail through our Sand Dunes and
GreenDrop brands.

We offer a range of glass bottles in
diverse shapes and sizes, catering to
evolving market demands. Our deep
technical expertise enables us to
provide tailored solutions and rapidly
adapt to industry trends, all while

maintaining customer confidentiality.

Operating three state-of-the-art
manufacturing plants in India, we
cater to a diverse clientele, including
leading international and Indian
brands in the alcoholic and non-

3

Plants in India

Corporate Overview

alcoholic beverage, wine, chemical,
pharmaceutical, and food sectors.
Our dedicated specialty plantin
Bhongir, Telangana, operating
since 2023, focuses on meeting
the customised requirements

of the cosmetics, perfumery,
candle, and premium alcohol
beverage industries.

AGI Greenpac's R&D Centre,

a pioneering initiative in the glass
packaging industry, is dedicated to
developing sustainable solutions and
pioneering new technologies such as
energy-efficient multi-colour cold foil
stamping process. Our Decoration
Unit, the best in India, offers an

array of customisation options and

1 ,754 tonnes

Statutory Reports  Financial Statements

leverages advanced processes,
including ceramic, UV, and hot-foil
stamping, to meet the evolving
demands of global cosmetics,
perfumery, and beverage brands.
We have a Creative Design Cell to
collaborate with the customers to
reimagine the glass solutions and
to let the customers get a hands-on
experience using 3D printing and
VR technology.

Per day capacity, including the newly operational

specialty glass plant

2.5 mito 5,000 ml

Bottle range

. Manufacturing Capacit
Industries Served pacity
Products Plants Ty
Containers - Beverages - Bhongir,
and Bottles - Liquor Telangana 950
- Soft drink + Wine tonnes
. Beer « Beer
+ Wine Pharmaceuticals
+ Spirits - Cosmetic . )
- Whisky « Personal care Specialty ) 154
. Medicine . Hospitality glass plant at Bhongir,
Vials Telangana tonnes
+ Chemicals
- Water
Food :lars _and Cosmetics . Sanathnagar, 650
- Nail polish Hyderabad,
« Perfume
Telangana tonnes

- Face creams
- Foundation
Candle jar

Annual Report 2023-24
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AGI Greenpac Limited

Business Review

Specialty Glass

We expanded our operations to
include a state-of-the-art specialty
glass plant in Bhongir. This new
facility serves premium market
segments such as cosmetics,
perfumery, and hospitality, offering
products including candle jars

and water bottles. Our in-house
decoration capabilities provide
comprehensive and customised
packaging solutions. We are proud
to partner with leading Indian and
international brands, delivering high-
quality glass packaging that redefines
the industry.

12

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.

Retail Business

To capitalise on the growing demand
for glass products, we launched retail
brands Sand Dune and GreenDrop,
catering to diverse sectors,

including hospitality, retail outlets,
e-commerce websites, and general
trade. Our focus on sustainability and
distinctive packaging and branding,
has been instrumental in building

a strong market position. Over the
next three years, we aim to optimise
operations, expand product range,
and enhance supply chain efficiency
to drive continued growth and
customer satisfaction.
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Business Highlights in FY 2023-24

Developed poly-coating
capabilities on bottles for
shatter resistance

Developed technical
capabilities to carry out
internal embossing

Statutory Reports  Financial Statements

Established technical
competencies of forehearth
coloured bottles from concept
to commercialisation

Enhanced in-house
capabilities relating to product
benchmarking (physical,
thermal, mechanical, chemical,
microstructural studies)

Developed the technical
capabilities to do non-stick
internal coating (Siliconisation)

Convened a supplier meeting in

the packaging materials category

to foster open communication,
strengthen partnerships and
future-proof our supply chain

Established Customer
Experience Centre in
Hyderabad for a hands-on
interactive session

Completed successful trial of a
Glass, a cosmetically improved
version of glass

Installed new ESP system in
Hyderabad plant

Expanded scope from being only the seller and manufacturer of soda lime glass containers to now being a
research-design-development manufacturer and seller of soda-lime glass containers with ISO 9001, 14001,
and 45001 certifications achieved by our R&D lab

Awards

'Supplier of the Year' award from
Diageo India for the second
consecutive year

Total Cost Management Award
in the Manufacturing Champion
category at the 22" ClI Cost
Congress

Received the 'Energy Efficient
Unit' award from ClI at the 24t
National Awards for Excellence
in Energy Management 2023 for
Bhongir plant

‘Great Place to Work' by the
Great Place to Work Institute,
India, for three consecutive
years

Certifications

All Plants

ISO 50001:2018 EMS
Certificate

Certificate of Conformance-
Food Contact Material
Integrated Management
System Policy

Hyderabad Plant

ISO 9001:2015
ISO 14001:2015
ISO 15378:2017
ISO 45001:2018
FSSC 22000

Annual Report 2023-24

Bhongir Plant

ISO 9001:2015

ISO 14001:2015

ISO 15378:2017

ISO 45001:2018

FSSC 22000 Bhongir
Certificate

USFDA DMF

(Drug Master Files) No. 25101
Complied Active Status

R&D Lab

ISO 9001: 2015
ISO 14001:2015
ISO 45001:2018

13



AGI Greenpac Limited

AGI Plastek

3

Plants in India

Business Highlights
in FY 2023-24

Achieved FSSC 22000
certification (Food safety
standards certification) for
all three plants

Products

Continued ISO 9001:2015
(Quality Management
System) certification for
Isnapur and Selaqui plants

Achieved ISO 15378:2017
(Good manufacturing
practices standard for
primary packaging in pharma
applications) certification for
Selaqui plant

14

PET bottles

High Density
Polyethylene
(HDPE) bottles

Polypropylene
(PP) product

1 1 ,892 tonnes

Per annum capacity

Hospitality

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.

We specialise in providing customised
and innovative PET packaging bottles
and products to the soft drinks,
water, edible oils, and personal care
industries. Our end-to-end control

of the total process - from preform
injection to stretch blowing - ensures
optimal product quality, consistency,
and efficiency. This integrated
approach helps us to fine-tune

every stage, minimising waste and
delivering superior PET bottles to our
customers. Our strategically located
facilities across India efficiently serve
the diverse needs of our customers.

Awards

Patent for the Drip Free bottle
for Viscous Liquids (Antacids)

'Consistent Supplier' award from
British Biologicals

Certifications

IS0 9001:2015

ISO 9001: 2015

ISO 15378: 2017
FSSC 22000

AGI Plastek Policy-22

Industries Manufacturing Capacity
Served Plants (per annum)
Alcoholic Dharwad,
beverages Karnataka 6128 8
Liquor tonnes
Pharmaceuticals
Fast Moving Sangareddy,
Consumer Telangana 21 542
Goods (FMCG) tonnes
Dairy
Agrochemicals '
Selaqui, 3 062
Personal care Uttarakhand !

tonnes
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AGI Clozures

1,057 million

Pieces per annum (large and small caps)

Product Industries
roducts Served
Counterfeit- + Liquor
resistant Soiie

security caps
and closures

Cosmetics

Pharmaceuticals

Manufacturing
Plants

Capacity
(per annum)

205

million pieces
(large caps)

852

million pieces
(small caps)

- Sangareddy,
Telangana

Business Highlights in FY 2023-24

Developed a new laser
printing machine for T-Cork
and modified the existing
laser printing machine to
accommodate wood and
plastic applications

Statutory Reports

Financial Statements

We understand the importance of
safeguarding a brand and protecting
consumers from counterfeit products.
This is why we started manufacturing
counterfeit security caps and closures
from our state-of-the-art, IGBC platinum-
rated manufacturing plant in 2018.

Our caps and closures incorporate
advanced security features such as
holographic elements and tamper-
evident seals. We have also integrated
RFID/NFC tags and unique identifiers to
provide robust product authentication and
traceability. This multi-layered approach
ensures that the products are protected at
every stage of the supply chain.

As a leading provider of security closures
for the alcoholic beverage industry, our
team of experts leverages cutting-edge
technology to deliver innovative and
secure packaging solutions. Expanding
our capabilities into related segments,
we optimise resource utilisation and
drive growth within the caps and
closures business.

Certifications

- FSSC 22000 certificate

- EMS certificate

« OH&S certificate

- OHSAS 18001:2007

+ Platinum IGBC Certification
Quality Management System
Standard ISO 9001:2015

Optimised testing capabilities by upgrading the in-house
facility with new machines for opening torque, capping,
e-capping and air leakage testing. This streamlined inspection
process, maximised resource utilisation and enhanced

measurement precision

Launched and celebrated
Quality Month to foster a
company-wide focus on quality

Established an Experience Centre
and initiated improvement activities
to enhance quality, productivity, and
value-added products

Annual Report 2023-24

Developed
indigenous premium
products for customers
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AGI Greenpac Limited

Business Review

Institutional Clients
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Marquee Brands
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AGI Greenpac Limited

Environment

Advancing the Green Vision

We are actively adopting and investing in environment-
friendly technologies and initiatives to establish a responsible

organisation for all stakeholders.

We continually strive to reduce our carbon footprint across all operations by undertaking various
initiatives, achieving significant improvements in recent years.

Emission Reduction

We have taken several steps to reduce our
environmental impact, including installing Variable
Frequency Drive (VFD) panels, using energy-efficient
equipment and deploying advanced Electrostatic
Precipitator (ESP) technology across our plants. These
initiatives help lower greenhouse gas emissions and
minimise air pollution, reflecting our commitment to
creating a cleaner and healthier environment.

3,10,531 MTCO,e

Total Scope 1 emissions in FY 2023-24

1,55,760 MTCO e

Total Scope 2 emissions in FY 2023-24

Renewable Energy

We are committed to reducing our carbon footprint
through the increased adoption of renewable energy.
To achieve this, we have implemented solar power
plants at our glass manufacturing facilities in Bhongir
and Sanathnagar. Additionally, we implemented a
rooftop solar power plant at our caps, closures, and
plastic business. We are expanding our renewable
energy capacity by installing a 2.8 MW rooftop solar
plant at our Hyderabad glass containers plant.

15.53 Mmw

Solar power plants installed at Glass
facilities

1.23 MW

Solar power plant installed at caps,
closures and plastic facilities

Water Conservation

We prioritise efficient water use through
rainwater harvesting, collecting it in dedicated
storage ponds. Our advanced reverse osmosis
(RO) system treats and reuses water from our
effluent and sewage treatment plants for various
operational needs. These measures contribute
to water conservation and minimise our
environmental impact.

2,68,605 kL

Total volume of water consumption in
FY 2023-24

1,062 KLD

RO units installed at manufacturing
facilities to treat and use wastewater

6

Rainwater storage ponds of 36,450 m?
capacity at Bhongir Glass plant
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Waste Management

We have implemented robust waste management
processes, including effluent and sewage treatment
plants for zero liquid discharge, and recycle almost all
process waste through regrinding and reprocessing. To
optimise resource utilisation, we have installed cullet and
fine sorting machinery at the Bhongir plant, enhancing
glass quality.

Installation of the Optical Cullet Sorting machine

has resulted in a ~10% increase in cullet utilisation in

the furnace. The fine sorter recovers 2-7 mm glass
particles from cullet dust, further minimising waste. Our
commitment to sustainable packaging is reflected in the
adoption of Bio D Master Batch, a biodegradable material,
in selected product lines.

Corporate Overview  Statutory Reports  Financial Statements

3,796 MT

Total waste generated
in FY 2023-24

30 tonnes/hr

Optical Cullet Sorting
Machine installed at Bhongir
glass plant

4 tonnes/hr

Fine sorter machine installed
at Bhongir Glass plant

Energy Consumption

We are committed to reducing energy consumption and
have implemented several initiatives across operations.
Regular energy audits conducted by Cll and TERI have
identified opportunities for improvement. We have
upgraded to energy-saving technologies, including 5-star
air conditioners, LED lighting, high-efficiency BLDC fans,
and IE3 and IE4 motors. We are also transitioning the
forklift fleet from diesel to electric power.

38,86,036a)

Total energy consumption
in FY 2023-24

Green Building Design

Recognising the importance of sustainable and
environmentally responsible practices, we have adopted
green building principles as a core part of the business
strategy and incorporating IGBC-certified Green Building
concepts in all upcoming projects and aim to achieve
platinum-rated 'Green Building' certification for the 154
TPD project.

In the Indian Container Glass industry, we are the only
organisation to have installed Electrostatic Precipitators
(ESP), significantly reducing emissions across all

our plants.

Our resource-efficient building designs ensure

that facilities, particularly shop floors, require no
artificial lighting during the daytime. Additionally, we
extensively use LED lighting, replacing conventional
HPSV and fluorescent lamps, to further enhance
energy efficiency.

Promoting Environment-friendly
Products

We are promoting GreenDrop Glassware as an
environment-friendly alternative to single-use
plastic packaging. Efforts are underway to minimise
packaging material and prioritise 100% recyclable or
biodegradable sourcing.

Annual Report 2023-24
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Social - Corporate Social Responsibility

Nurturing Growth,
Enriching Lives

We are committed to creating a positive social impact. By collaborating
closely with communities, we effectively understand their needs and
implement sustainable initiatives that empower individuals and protect
the environment. Partnering with NGOs and local organisations, we focus
on education, renewable energy and community development. Our CSR
efforts are guided by a comprehensive framework and align with national
priorities that ensure long-term value creation for all stakeholders.

Supporting ego _ge o
Rural Livelihoods Initiatives during
FY 2023-24
Supporting Rural
Livelihoods

We are committed to empowering
local communities and driving
sustainable agricultural practices.
Our plantation project started in
Our Areas of FY 2022-23, based in Telangana near
Intervention our manufacturing plants, aims to
enhance the livelihoods of local
farmers. By providing comprehensive
support, including training,
Supporting resources, and market linkages, we
Community have empowered over 330 farmers in
Health the past two years.

Promoting Skill
Enhancement

Ensuring
Road Safety

Support to
Local School
Infrastructure

To bolster our efforts, we

continue collaborating with

trained scientists from the Indian
Council of Agricultural Research
(ICAR) to provide practical training
and demonstrations on farming
processes, including mulching, plant
nourishment, disease control, and
effective plantation techniques.

To facilitate their farming efforts,

we continued to supply farmers with
free saplings, seeds, bio-fertilisers,
mulching sheets, and informative
IEC materials. This holistic approach
has fostered a thriving farming
ecosystem, improving crop yields
and quality while benefitting the
entire community.
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Promoting Skill
Enhancement

For the first time, we have launched
a Skill Training Centre in Bhongir

to support the youth in the region
surrounding our manufacturing
plant. This initiative aligns with
India’s vision of inclusive growth and
skill development. We have started
a technical training programme

at the centre to empower young
people with essential skills. By
cultivating a skilled workforce,

we drive economic growth in the
region and fulfil our commitment to
community development.

Supporting
Community Health

We prioritise the well-being of
communities surrounding the
manufacturing facilities. Our on-
site dispensaries provide essential
healthcare services to over 600
villagers monthly, complemented
by mobility aids for the elderly.

We conduct regular health camps
in nearby villages, impacting
hundreds of beneficiaries. Our
initiatives include free eye checkups
with spectacle distribution,
demonstrating our commitment to
holistic community health.

Corporate Overview

Support to Local
School's Infrastructure

A solid foundation for education
begins with a robust school
infrastructure. By providing essential
facilities like clean water, sanitation,
and hygiene, we strive to create
healthier and more inclusive learning
environments. Our support for
government schools has improved
attendance, especially among

girls and laid the groundwork

for a brighter future for the

entire community.

We have invested in upgrading
infrastructure at five local
government schools and improving
sanitation and classroom facilities.

Ensuring Road Safety

To prioritise the safety of our
community, we have installed CCTV
cameras at Sanathnagar, Hyderabad.
This advanced surveillance

system enables us to monitor the
surrounding area closely, deterring
incidents and allowing for swift
response when necessary.

Annual Report 2023-24

Statutory Reports  Financial Statements

Other Initiatives

Recognising the critical need for
improved infrastructure in rural
areas, we constructed a culvertin
Bhongir to enhance connectivity
and local infrastructure.

To encourage local athletic talent,
we sponsored Anvitha Padamati,
a mountaineer from Bhongir. We
covered the costs of her training
and travel as she embarked on the
challenging expedition to climb
Mount Denali.

Awards

Awarded Best CSR Impact
Award by SMX at CSR
Leadership Summit Awards 2023

Honoured with the Best CSR
Award in the Livelihoods
category at the 10th CSR &
Sustainability Awards, hosted
by UBS Forums

Won National CSR Award at the
'National CSR Awards' event
hosted by Sikhar NGO, and UN
Global Compact Network, India

Felicitated by the District
Education Authorities of
Yadadri District, for work done
under CSR to improve local
school infrastructure

23



AGI Greenpac Limited

Social - People

Cultivating a
Culture of Excellence

As we expand and diversify, fostering a unified
culture is paramount. To achieve this, we
introduced ACT — Accountability, Collaboration,
and Talent — as our core values. These principles
guide our actions and decisions, creating a
collaborative environment where employees
work cohesively towards shared objectives.

Respect

Nurturing

of Talent Ownership

Continuous
Learning

Recognition of
Achievements

Attentive
Listening

Great
Place

AGI Glaspac was awarded ‘Great Place To

to Work' by the Great Place to Work Wo r k ®
Institute, India, for the third timein a i
row. This accolade is a testament to . g

our exceptional workplace culture, Certlfled
employee satisfaction, and commitment MAR 2024-MAR 2025

to fostering a positive and inclusive
work environment.
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Initiatives during
FY 2023-24

Learning and Development

The Academy

We designed the Academy, a
comprehensive platform, to equip
our employees with the essential
skills and knowledge for continuous
learning and growth.

Suite of Features

Customised Learning Paths:

A selection of courses, webinars,
and training materials tailored to
employee-specific roles, interests,
and development goals.

Engaging Content Creation:

To make learning more impactful
and enjoyable, we created interactive
learning modules and videos.

Efficient Compliance Monitoring:
We ensure adherence to compliance
programmes through timely

mobile notifications.

Personalised Learning Hub:

To track progress, complete courses,
take assessments and meet learning
objectives, individual dashboards
are set.

Versatile Access: Learning is made
convenient through the app on
desktops, laptops and smartphones.

Blended Learning Opportunities:

A curated range of skill-based
programmes available in classroom,
virtual, or hybrid formats to enhance
knowledge and productivity.

Enhancing Skills

with ‘Learning Friday’

To enhance technical skills, develop
leadership capabilities and promote
team building, we designed a weekly
programme, the ‘Learning Friday'.
This programme encompasses
various sessions, workshops, and
trainings to enhance employee skills
and empower them to reach their
full potential.



Unlocking Potential with
360-Degree Feedback

Aimed at driving personal and
professional growth, we introduced
a comprehensive 360-degree
feedback programme, ‘Reflection’.
The programme aligns with best

practices, providing a comprehensive

view of performance by gathering
feedback from peers, supervisors,
and subordinates. This helps us
enhance employee career growth
by identifying their strengths and
development areas to develop and
implement targeted programmes.

Employee Engagement

We developed a social intranet
to empower our employees
and enhance organisation-
wide productivity.

Cricket League

We started the SIG Cricket
League with 20 teams from
Group companies participating
in lively competitions to promote
sportsmanship and teamwork
among the participants.

Promoting Financial Literacy among

Female Employees

We introduced a comprehensive
financial wellness programme to
empower our female employees to
attain financial independence and
security in collaboration with Bajaj
Capital Ltd. Arranging continuous

Corporate Overview

investment advisory sessions,
customised workshops, and
personalised guidance, we equip
them with knowledge and tools,
unlocking a strong financial future.

Community Engagement
and Social Impact

We encourage our employees
to create a positive impact on
the communities we serve. We

partnered with the Bharti Foundation

to increase social impact by
undertaking several community
enhancement initiatives and
programmes, focusing on enriching
the lives of underprivileged children
through education.

Under our partnership, we aim to
support students from Satya Bharti
Schools across five states and the
Quality Support Programme in
eleven states. We also organise
volunteering initiatives, where our

employees contribute their time and

skills to uplift these communities.

Campus Recruitments

We collaborate with top B-schools
across India, recruiting talents

to form a high-performing and
diverse team that aligns with

our work environment and gives
greater output.

Annual Report 2023-24
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Digital Initiatives

'Hum Tum' - HR Chatbot

We innovated 'Hum Tum, an
Al-enabled HR chatbot that operates
around the clock to enhance
employee satisfaction by providing
quick responses to queries and
offering instant HR solutions and
policy guidance.

Rewards and Recognition
(R&R) Portal

We launched the Wall R&R portal,
a digital platform, to recognise and
reward employee contributions,
establishing a code of appreciation
for high performance. The portal
motivates the employees by acting
as a forum for acknowledging
outstanding achievements.
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Governance - Board of Directors

Guided by Visionaries

Mr. Sandip Somany Mrs. Sumita Somany
Chairman and Managing Director Non-Executive Non-Independent
A Commerce graduate and a diploma holder Director
in Ceramic Manufacturing Technology from - A Commerce graduate
the US
Possesses rich and varied experience in
39-years work experience in the ceramics and consumer behaviour, their buying patterns
glass industry a related field
Past President of PHD Chamber of Commerce - Possesses expertise in community services

and Industry (PHDCCI
v ) Member of Corporate Social Responsibility

Past President of International Chamber Committee, Corporate Affairs Committee and
of Commerce - (Headquarters in Paris) Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
India Chapter the Company

Past President of Federation of Indian
Chambers of Commerce and Industry (FICCI)

Chairman of the Indian Council of Sanitaryware
Manufactures (INCOSAMA)

Chairman of Risk Management Committee of
the Company

Member of Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee and Corporate Affairs Committee
of the Company

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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iy
Mr. G. L. Sultania Mr. V. K. Bhandari
Non-Executive Non-Independent Independent Director
Director

Fellow Chartered Accountant with over 42 years
Commerce graduate, Fellow Chartered of experience in the Banking Industry

sagouiant, [ellon Company Seaetary end Former General Manager of the Central Bank

conelzni by profesaion of India and had been the Head of Credit,
Possesses vast knowledge and experience of Credit Monitoring, Treasury, Investment,
Financial Restructuring, Corporate Laws and Funds Management, Merchant Banking and
Legal Compliance International Banking Divisions

General Member of Association of Corporate + Chairman of the Company'’s Audit Committee

AehTsETB A IBEaUiivEs Member of Stakeholders Relationship

Member of Stakeholders' Relationship (Shareholders'/ Investors’ Grievance) Committee
(Shareholders'/Investors’ Grievance) Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee
of the Company of the Company

Annual Report 2023-24
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Mr. N. G. Khaitan

Independent Director

Mr. Anil Wadhwa

Independent Director

28

Attorney-At-Law and a Notary Public appointed by
the Government of India

Practises in the Hon'ble High Court Calcutta and
the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India

Senior partner at Khaitan & Co., one of the leading
law firms in India

Awarded Bell Chamber's Gold Medal by the
Incorporated Law Society, Calcutta High Court,
for standing first in all the Law examinations

President of the Indian Council of Arbitration,
New Delhi

President of Bharat Chamber of Commmerce

Former Vice President of the Agri-Horticultural
Society of India

Executive Committee member of the Federation
of Indian Chambers of Commerce and Industry
(FICCI), New Delhi

Executive Committee member of two leading
schools in Kolkata

Chairman of the Stakeholders’ Relationship
(Shareholders/Investors’ Grievance) Committee
and Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Company

Member of Audit Committee and Risk
Management Committee of the Company

Former Member of the Indian Foreign Service

Served as Indian Ambassador to Poland,
Lithuania, Sultanate of Oman, Thailand, Italy, and
San Marino in the course of 37 years of service in
the IFS

Specialised in disarmament and
economic relations

Served as Chairman of the Board of World Food
Programme (WFP)

Permanent Representative of India to Food and
Agriculture Organisation (FAO) and International
Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD)

Served as Secretary (East) in the Ministry of
External Affairs in New Delhi from 2014-2016
looking after South-East Asia, Australasia and
Pacific, Gulf and West Asian regions

Partner in an LLP-India Pathfinders
Strategic Advisers

Chairman of Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee of the Company

Member of Audit Committee and Corporate
Affairs Committee of the Company

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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Mr. Rakesh Sarin

Independent Director

Ms. Himalyani Gupta

Independent Director

A Chemical Engineer and distinguished alumni of
[IT BHU, London Business School & Said Business
School, Oxford

47 years of experience in the field of distributed
energy, policy advocacy and development of
large renewable energy platform

Currently engaged in consulting with corporates,
business houses and large international funds to
provide advisory and mentorship

Possesses strong business insights of
energy sector

Global business leader at the helm operations of
large corporations as CEO and Director on the
Board of various companies

An active angel investor and bootstrapping three
start-ups in the space of Wellness, Climate &
Strategy Delivery

Member of Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee, Risk Management
Committee and Corporate Affairs Committee of
the Company

Advocate with over 34 years of experience

Standing Counsel for Union of India in the
Supreme Court

Senior Founding Partner in UHV International
Partners, leading Delhi based law firm

Rendered legal and advisory services to various
Indian and Foreign Corporate Clients and is on
the recommended lawyer list for the embassy of
Argentina in India

Possesses immense exposure in handling
litigations of national importance which led to
passing of Landmark judgments in the field of
Constitutional Law

Member of Audit Committee and Stakeholders'
Relationship (Shareholders//investors’ Grievance)
Committee of the Company

Annual Report 2023-24
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Management Discussion
and Analysis

Global Economy

The global economy in 2023
displayed unexpected resilience,
despite challenges such as high
interest rates across countries,
fiscal consolidation and geopolitical
tensions among others. The world
economy expanded by 3.2% in 2023
owing to elevated borrowing costs,
the phased withdrawal of fiscal
stimuli, enduring repercussions of
the COVID-19 pandemic, geopolitical
disruptions and geoeconomic
fragmentation emerging out of
armed escalations, and sluggish
growth in certain economies.

Global inflation moderated from its
2022 peak and reduced recession
risks. Global inflation is projected

to decline from 6.8% in 2023 to

5.9% in 2024, and further to 4.5% in
2025. The IMF notes that the global
economic outlook remains balanced,
with potential risks stemming from
geopolitical tensions, persistent core
inflation, and elevated interest rates.

30

According to the IMF, global
economic growth is expected to
remain stable at 3.2% through 2024
and 2025.

Source: IMF World Economic
Outlook, April 2024

Indian Economy

India has ascended to become the
world's fifth-largest economy by
nominal GDP and the third-largest
by Purchasing Power Parity (PPP).
According to the Second Advance
Estimates of National Income
released by the National Statistical
Office (NSO) of the Government
of Indiain February 2024, the GDP
growth rate for the FY 2023-24 is
estimated at 7.6%, an improvement
from the 7.0% growth recorded in
FY 2022-23.

India's economy has surged
forward, propelled by advantageous
demographics and a domestic

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.

consumer-oriented market,
characterised by a burgeoning

class of affluent citizens. India's
strategic investments have
established a scalable, digitised
public infrastructure, including
platforms for identity verification,
digital payment interfaces, and an
open e-commerce network. This
has positioned the nation to channel
future growth through its vibrant
small and medium-sized enterprises
and burgeoning startup ecosystem.

The forecast for FY 2024-25 remains
optimistic with the Reserve Bank
of India (RBI) anticipating a GDP
growth of 7%. The Government
of India remains committed to
drive the country’s manufacturing
sectors through focused schemes
and incentives while continuing
its investment momentum in the
infrastructure to drive holistic
economic growth.
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Packaging Industry Review

The global packaging market is set
to expand significantly, growing from
US$1.14 trillion in 2024 to US$1.38
trillion by 2029, at a Compound
Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of
3.89%. This growth is driven
primarily by increased demand in
Asia, particularly in India and China,
due to the large food and beverage
markets. Additionally, there is a
rising global demand for paper and
paperboard packaging, expected to
continue growing.

The Indian packaging industry is
forecasted to grow from US$84.37
billion in 2024 to US$142.56 billion
by 2029, with a CAGR of 11.06%.
This rapid expansion is fuelled by
consumer market growth, especially
in processed food, personal care,
and pharmaceuticals. Macro factors
such as population growth, rising
incomes, and changing lifestyles
are also contributing to increased
demand for packaging solutions.

The industry is seeing a shift
towards sustainable and eco-
friendly packaging materials.
Technological advancements,
including new materials, coatings,
and printing methods, are enhancing
packaging utility, durability, and
visual appeal, thereby increasing
market acceptance. The demand
for renewable, biodegradable, and
compostable packaging options
is expected to rise significantly

as firms respond to the push for
sustainable alternatives.

Source: Mordor Intelligence

Glass Packaging
Products Market

The global glass packaging market,
valued at US$67.28 billion in 2024, is
expected to reach US$93.69 billion by
2032, growing at a CAGR of 4.23%.
Glass packaging's recyclability and
safety have driven its increased use
in food, beverages, personal care,
and cosmetics. The shift towards

safe and healthy packaging solutions
is expected to sustain this growth.

In India, the glass packaging market
is projected to grow and the drivers
include the beer, pharmaceutical,
alcoholic beverage, FMCG, online
grocery, and cosmetic industries.

Glass's ecological benefits,
supported by recycling programmes,
are expanding its market. Glass
bottles and jars are 100% recyclable,
fitting well with the circular
economy principles. This focus on
sustainability is boosting the use of
glass packaging, reducing waste, and
lowering carbon footprints.

There is a notable trend towards
premium products, with attractive
packaging becoming important,
particularly in the alcoholic and
non-alcoholic beverage and
cosmetic sectors. Glass packaging
is favoured in the alcoholic beverage
industry for its superior quality,
elegant appearance, and consumer
perception of better taste.

PET Bottles and Products

The global PET packaging market is
experiencing robust growth, driven
by factors such as increasing demand
for convenience foods, beverages,
and personal care products.

The market is projected to reach
US$54.3 billion by 2028. Consumer
preferences for lightweight,
recyclable, and barrier-protective
packaging are driving the adoption
of PET.

India's PET packaging market has

a projected growth rate of 4.3% to
reach US$3.5 billion by 2032.

The expansion of the beverage and
packaged water industries, coupled
with rising disposable incomes

and changing lifestyles, is fuelling
market growth.

Source: IMARC Group
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Security Caps
and Closures

The global plastic closures and caps
market is projected to reach $85
billion by 2026 growing at a CAGR
of 5.5% from 2021 to 2026. This
growth is driven by surging demand
for packaged goods, e-commerce
expansion, and a heightened focus
on product safety.

In India, the market size of plastic
caps and closures stood at ~US$1.8
billion in 2023, with the IMARC Group
forecasting a rise to US$2.9 billion
by 2032, reflecting a growth rate
(CAGR) of 5.2% from 2024 to 2032.
This market growth is propelled

by increased demand for bottled
water, the trend of on-the-go food
consumption, expansion in the
pharmaceutical sector, urbanisation
driving packaged beverages and
foods segment,

and the growing demand for
eco-friendly solutions.

Innovative closures, such as
tamper-evident seals and smart
caps, are reshaping the industry.
These closures are in high
demand to safeguard products
and enhance consumer trust.
Features like NFC technology-
enabled and high-security UV
offset printing inks are combatting
counterfeiting, particularly in sectors
like pharmaceuticals and food

and beverages.
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Demand for India’s

Packaging Sector Thg alcobev sec.tor is experiencing India’s cAosmetic.s an.d personal care
rapid growth, driven by market is experiencing a robust

urbanisation, evolving lifestyles, and growth, with a projected expansion
changing social attitudes. India's from US$28.0 billion in 2023 to
alcoholic beverage market was US$46.6 billion by 2032, driven by
valued at US$60.48 billion in 2023. a compound annual growth rate of
With projected compound annual 5.6%. This expansion is driven by
growth of 7%, the sector is set to factors such as rising disposable
reach US$79.28 billion by 2027. This incomes, urbanisation, evolving
significant expansion reflects the consumer preferences, a wider
industry’'s dynamic nature and the range of products, growing demand
evolving preferences of consumers. for natural and organic options,

and improved accessibility through
online platforms.

Beer Industry Source: IMARC Group

The Indian beer market was

valued at ¥414.7 billion in 2023. Pharmaceutical Industry
It is projected to expand at a

compound annual growth rate
(CAGR) of 7.1% from 2024 to 2032,
reaching ¥781.2 billion. Key drivers
of market growth include evolving
consumer preferences, increased
product accessibility through
online platforms and changing
consumer lifestyles.

India's pharmaceutical industry is
experiencing a robust growth, with
the domestic market expanding
from US$41 billion in 2021 to a
projected US$65 billion by 2024 and
further to US$130 billion by 2030.
This growth is propelled by factors
such as generic drug production,
Source: IMARC Group biosimilar development, and
increased investments in medical

devices. Additionally, significant
FMCG Market growth in exports and foreign
investments is contributing to the

India's FMCG packaging market is industry's expansion.
poised for substantial growth, with Source: Economic Survey of India,
projected revenues expanding from 2023-2024

~US$472.8 billion in 2024 to surpass
US$786.66 billion by 2033, driven by

a steady compound annual growth x
rate of 5.8%. Online Grocery Market

This expansion is driven by factors

such as rising disposable incomes, The online grocery packaging
urbanisation, evolving consumer market in India was worth %2,515.84
preferences, and a growing billion in 2022 and is expected to
middle class. grow to %5,225.76 billion by 2028,

with a compound annual growth
rate (CAGR) of about 13.56%
between 2023 and 2028. This
growth is attributed to factors

such as population growth, rising
incomes, changing lifestyles, and
increased media penetration, which
has led to a higher demand for
packaging products.

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.



Corporate Overview

Business Review

Throughout the year, our glass
containers capacity utilisation
consistently exceeded 95%,
demonstrating our commitment
to operational excellence and
effective production optimisation.
This achievement is notable given
planned shutdowns for relining one
of our furnaces, highlighting our
resilience and customer focus.

Significant investments in
digitalisation and automation

enhanced operational efficiency,
with dashboards informing data-
driven decision-making. Process
re-engineering has optimised
waste management and energy
consumption. Third-party audits
refined operations, and robust
quality management systems,
including Six Sigma and Total EQM,
were implemented.

These advancements positioned
us at the forefront of industry
innovation and a partner of choice of
our customers.
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Commercial production of specialty
glass commenced in 2023 and is now
fully operational. In FY 2023-24, we
actively participated in exhibitions
across key markets, including the
UAE, USA, and Europe. These
platforms proved instrumental in
expanding our global footprint, and
fostering relationships with potential
clients and partners.

Outlook

Looking ahead, our strategic

focus is on driving growth through
innovation, sustainability, and
expanding into high-margin product
segments. We are committed to
maintaining financial discipline,
operational efficiency, and
sustainable business practices as
foundational to our success.

Innovation remains a core driver,
with a focus on developing
differentiated offerings and

exploring new market opportunities.

Internally, we are committed to
operational excellence, empowering

our team through process
optimisation and a culture of
continuous improvement.

For the acquisition of a 100% stake
in Hindustan National Glass and
Industries Limited, we submitted
a resolution plan in the Corporate
Insolvency Resolution Process
(CIRP) under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code 2016. A Letter
of Intent (LOI) dated 28 October
2022 was issued to AGI Greenpac
Limited declaring the Company as
a successful resolution applicant
under CIRP with due authorisation
of the committee of creditors

Annual Report 2023-24

of the Corporate Debtor. The
Company had given its acceptance
of the LOI and issued underlying
performance bank guarantees as
per the requirement of the LOI. The
Competition Commission of India
approved the above-mentioned
transaction vide its order dated 15
March 2023, as published on its
website. The closure of the aforesaid
transaction is subject to obtaining
necessary regulatory approvals
from the Hon'ble NCLT Kolkata and
other customary approvals, filings,
and processes.

33



34

AGI Greenpac Limited

People-centricity

At AGI Greenpac, we are
focused on fostering a
culture of collaboration
and instilling a unified
‘One Company’ mindset.
Our people are our
greatest asset. We are
committed to empowering
our employees through
robust skill development
and career growth
opportunities. By investing
in our talent and fostering
a diverse, inclusive
workplace, we create a
high-performing culture
that drives innovation and
delivers exceptional results
for all stakeholders.

Read more on Pg 24

Risk Management

Our business utilises a comprehensive risk management process to identify, treat, and alleviate risks arising from both
internal and external factors. Our top management regularly monitors our risk management framework, enabling us
to remain proactive in anticipating and addressing potential risks.

Risk Appetite

We regularly assess and confirm our level of tolerance for risk and incorporate it into our overall framework for

managing risks, which facilitates sound decision-making.

Growth Ambition

Given the constantly
changing conditions
of the business
environment, it is
important to engage
in both strategic
risk-taking and risk
mitigation efforts

in a thoughtful and
deliberate manner.

Compliance

Our business culture
and strategy are
built upon the
essential foundations
of adhering to

both legislative
requirements

and sound

business principles.

Brand

We are dedicated

to safeguarding

our brand, securing
our interests, and
ensuring the safety
of our employees,
while also striving for
sustainable growth.

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.

Efficiency

Our competitiveness

is driven by making
operational safety

our top priority and
continually improving it.
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Risk Management Framework

Il

|dentify Mitigation Measure & Assess Report & Monitor Governance

The Risk Management Committee, consisting of senior members of the Board, is responsible for regularly overseeing
the risk management process. The identified risks are categorised into strategic, business, and operational risks. The
Committee is accountable for monitoring the key risks within each of the three categories and providing measures to
mitigate them.

Risk Management Pillars

N

=

Culture and Values Learning and Development Trainings
Our Culture and Values are essential in guiding Learning and development trainings provide
our approach to Risk Management support for internal controls, ethics, anti-fraud

measures, authority limits, crisis and business
continuity management, as well as compliance

=

Strategy and Objectives Risk Policies and Control Standards
Strategy and objectives have been reflected We conduct all of our operations in compliance
in such a way that it reflects our risk appetite. with our risk policies and control standards.

Business Risks

Risks Impact Mitigation Measures

Low Inventory Inadequate sales strategy Our efficient inventory management system facilitates accurate SKU

Movement has culminated in excess mapping for phased introduction and removal. We employ big data
inventory. analytics to plan the replacement of SKUs at the right time.

Currency Risk Fluctuations in foreign To hedge our foreign exchange position and decrease our exposure to
exchange rates affect our fluctuations as needed, we invest in derivative instruments after careful
profitability. consideration.
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Risks

Impact

Mitigation Measures

Interest Rate
and Commodity
Price Volatility

Any increase in interest
rates or commaodity price
declines could have a
detrimental impact on the
business.

To maintain the affordability of raw materials, we carefully plan the
quantities of our inventory. To maintain our competitive advantage,
we closely monitor both short-term and long-term interest rates.

Lack of Inability to remain We remain on top of developing trends by performing extensive market
Innovation competitive in the market research and soliciting feedback from institutional clients regularly.
due to a lack of knowledge Our R&D team is constantly striving to employ new technologies and
about breakthroughs and create innovative solutions that satisfy our clients' needs.
innovative technology.
Inadequate Ineffective marketing At the moment, we are creating a business-to-business (B2B) model.
Distribution and distribution can Our institutional clients benefit from our ongoing innovation and
Channel hinder sales and business reinforcement since we can guarantee higher product quality and faster
growth. turnaround times.
Substitutional PET and glass containers We are well-positioned to give our clients a one-stop shop, offering them
Risk can be interchanged, the choice of PET or glass packaging, allowing us to focus on packaging
which may affect the while preserving revenue streams.
viability of either of these
business groups.
Employee Skill A team with insufficient We have a strong employee engagement framework and a good hiring

Development

experience and low
personnel competencies
could hinder progress.

process in place, which has led to a higher retention rate. Our objective is
to increase organisational effectiveness by honing personnel skills through
carefully thought-out training initiatives.

Unorganised Low-cost solutions from The threat posed by the unorganised sector is steadily decreasing as a
Sector unorganised competitors result of industrial consolidation and the implementation of the GST.
have the potential to Our unique products also cater to a wide spectrum of selective
reduce our market share. consumers with a variety of aims.
Working Capital Short-term liquidity We have robust working capital management in place, which helps with
Management requirements can influence inventory optimisation, shortening the accounts receivable cycle, and

both growth
and profitability.

improving cash flow.

Operation Risks

Risks Impact Mitigation Measures
Health and Any sort of mishap or loss Workers in our factories receive EHS training to ensure their safety and
Safety Risk of life can put an end to strict adherence to employee health and safety regulations.

activities.
Loss of Key Any loss of KMP could Our rewards, recognition, and pay system guarantees that key members
Managerial have an adverse effect on of our management team are competitively compensated, keeping them
Personnel the Company. motivated.
(KMP)
Loss of Any loss of suppliers could All of our suppliers have strong, long-term relationships with us, and our
Suppliers disrupt the Company's vendors help us maintain these alliances. In addition, we maintain contact

typical business
environment.

with a variety of vendors to avoid leaning too much on any one of them.

Product Failure
and Lack of
Differentiations

If we are unable to evoke
a positive market reaction
for our items, we may lose
money.

We offer a diverse range of products to a variety of industries. Due to the
breadth of our product offerings, the failure of a single item or line may
have little impact on overall sales. We have a consumer-oriented R&D
facility that is always developing new, relevant products.

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.



Strategic Risks

Risks

Impact
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Mitigation Measures

Geopolitical

Geopolitical concerns

We are able to prevent being overly reliant on any single product or

Risks may affect how effectively market due to our broad product offerings across industries and market
corporations perform. penetration.
Economic A sluggish Indian The Indian economy has been one of the best-performing ones among

Unpredictability

economy could lead to a
decrease in demand for
our products.

the developing economies and is expected to continue this growth over
the foreseeable future.

Inability to

Our profit potential may

To fulfil a diverse spectrum of customer needs, we are constantly

Understand suffer if we are unable to expanding our product offerings by launching new product ranges and

Customer stay relevant and satisfy SKU categories in response to regular feedback from our institutional

Preferences clients through design and customers. We also do a lot of R&D, which helps with the continuous
product innovation. release of new products.

Customer Excessive reliance on a We engage with a wide range of clients. However, due to the complexity

Concentration

limited number of clients
might reduce profitability.

of our product offering and our client-centric mindset, we value long-term
relationships with our institutional clients.

Inability to

Any changes to the

As part of our dedication to remaining people-centric and accountable,

Adhere to the legislation may have an we follow all applicable regulatory norms, ranging from those pertaining
Regulatory influence on our actions. to our employees' well-being to those concerning environmental
Requirements preservation.

Tariff Wars Any disruption in trade To reduce the danger of tariff issues, we have formed amicable ties with

agreements between
exporting partner
countries may severely
affect our operations.

our export partners and diversified our export portfolio.

Internal Control

The internal control systems

assets from unauthorised use,

efficient exchange of information.

are commensurate with the

size, scale, and complexity of

the operations of the Company.
These have been designed to
provide reasonable assurance with
regard to recording and providing
reliable financial and operational
information, complying with the
applicable statutes, safeguarding

executing transactions with
proper authorisation, and ensuring

compliance with corporate policies.

We use SAP, a well-accepted
Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) system, to record data for
accounting, consolidation, and
management of information and
connect to different locations for

Internal Financial Control

We follow a proper Internal financial
control as policies and procedures
for ensuring orderly and efficient
conduct of business, including
adherence to the Company's
policies, safeguarding of its assets,
prevention and detection of

frauds and errors, accuracy and
completeness of the accounting

records, and timely preparation of
reliable financial information. We
also have documented Risk and
Control Matrices (RACM) covering
all activities, and all controls are
tested for design and operating
effectiveness as part of our
Internal Financial Control Reporting
framework. The financial controls

Annual Report 2023-24

The Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors, comprising Independent
Directors review the effectiveness

of the internal control system across
the Company, including the annual
plan, significant audit findings and
recommendations, adequacy of
internal controls, and compliance with
accounting policies and regulations.

are evaluated for both design and
operating effectiveness by an
external consulting firm of repute.

In our view, the Internal Financial
Controls are adequate and are in

line with best practices applicable to
organisations of a similar size, nature,
and complexity.
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Directors’ Report

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the sixty-fourth Annual Report and the Company'’s audited financial statements

for the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

Financial Results

The Company's financial performance, for the year ended 31 March 2024 is summarised below:

(R in lakh)
2023-24 2022-23

. Contim..uing Discontin'ued Total Continl:ling Discontin.ued Total
Particulars Operations Operations Operations Operations
Revenue from Operations 2,42,088 2,42,088 2,28,148 56 2,28,204
Add: Other Income 2,416 2,416 2,595 2,595
Total Income 2,44,504 2,44,504 2,30,743 56 2,30,799
Profit before tax 33,992 33,992 30,419 -15 30,404
Exceptional item - gain from slump sale - 1,729 1,729
Less: Tax expenses 8,859 8,859 5,540 429 5,969
Profit after tax (i) 25,133 25,133 24,879 1,285 26,164
Less: Other Comprehensive Income 1,095 1,095 1,323 1,323
(net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year 24,038 24,038 23,556 1,285 24,841
Add: Balance brought forward (ii) 92,940 70,011
Amount available for appropriation (i+ii) 118,073 96,175
APPROPRIATIONS:
Less: Dividend paid on equity shares 3,235 3,235
Balance carried forward 1,14,838 92,940

(Figures have been rounded off to the nearest 2 in lakh)

Operational Review

Your Company reported a strong performance during
FY 2023-24 across key business divisions. Your Company
ended the year with revenue from continuing operations
of ¥ 2,42,088 lakh over previous year corresponding figure
of ¥2,28,148 lakh registering a growth of 6%. This resulted
in profit before tax and exceptional item of ¥ 33,992 lakh
in FY 2023-24 against ¥ 30,404 lakh from continuing and
Discontinued operations in FY 2022-23, representing a
growth of around 12%.

Packaging Products Division (PPD)

The revenue from operations for FY 2023-24 was 3 2,40,041
lakh as compared to FY 2022-23 revenue from operations
of ¥ 2,22,137 lakh. This resulted in EBIT of ¥ 44,656 lakh
in FY 2023-24, representing a growth of around 17%.
The Company's consistent performance was driven by
a combination of factors. Firstly, meeting the growing
demand for both alcoholic and non-alcoholic beverages
played a pivotal role. Secondly, significant enhancements
in internal efficiencies boosted operational effectiveness.
Thirdly, a steadfast commitment to cultivating customer
loyalty further solidified the Company's position in
the market. Additionally, prioritising high-value-added
products and an emphasise on a premium mix further
fortified the Company'’s profitability.

AGI Glass: Glass Containers

Forayed into export markets such as the EU, Canada,
and South Africa with niche products

Awarded Great Place to Work by the Great Place to
Work Institute, India 34 time in a row

Total Cost Management Award in the Manufacturing
Champion category at the 22" Cll Cost Congress,
acknowledging our strategic approach to driving
efficiency and sustainability through cost management.
Furthermore, our Bhongir Plant received the 'Energy
Efficient Unit’ award from Cll at the 24t National Awards
for Excellence in Energy Management 2023

Recipient of Diageo India’s ‘Supplier of the Year' award
for two years in a row

AGI Plastek: PET Bottles and Products

« FSSC 22000 certification (Food safety standards
certification) achieved for all three plants

+ 1SO9001:2015 (Quality Management System) continued
certification for Isnapur and Selaqui plant

- ISO 15378:2017 (Good manufacturing practices
standard for primary packaging in pharma applications)
certification achieved for Selaqui plant

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.



Security Caps and Closures

Developed a new laser printing machine for T-Cork
locally, and modified the existing laser printing machine
to accommodate both Wood and Plastic applications

Developed indigenous for

customers at the plant

premium  products

Optimised our testing capabilities with an upgraded
in-house facility, installing new machines for Opening
Torque, Capping & De-capping, and Air Leakage. This
streamlined inspection, maximised resource utilisation,
and enhanced measurement precision

Change in the Nature of Business

There was no change in the nature of business of your
Company during the year.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate
Companies
The Company had no subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and

Associates Companies during the year under review.

The policy for determining material subsidiaries may be
accessed on the Company's website at the link: Material
Subsidiary Policy

Dividend

Your Directors have recommended a dividend of ¥ 6/-
(i,e. 300%) per equity share (last year ¥ 5/- (i.e. 250%)
per equity share) on each equity share of ¥ 2/- for the
financial year ended 31 March 2024, amounting to
% 3,881.84 Lakh subject to deduction of income tax at
source, as applicable. The dividend payout is subject
to approval of members at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

The dividend will be paid to those shareholders whose
names appear in the Register of Members/List of Beneficial
Owners (as furnished by National Securities Depository
Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited)
as on 11 September 2024.

Transfer to Reserves

The Board proposes not to transfer any amount out of the
profit for the year under review to the general reserve.

Deposits

Your Company has not accepted any deposit within
the meaning of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013
("Act”) and as such no amount of principal or interest was
outstanding as on the Balance Sheet date.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

In accordance with the provisions of the Act and Articles
of Association of the Company, Mrs. Sumita Somany,
Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports  Financial Statements

Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself
for re-appointment.

During the year under review, Mr. Pulkit Bhasin resigned
from the position of Company Secretary & Compliance
Officer of the Company, effective 10 November 2023.
Mr. Ompal has been appointed as the new Company
Secretary and Compliance Officer, designated as the
whole-time Key Managerial Personnel of the Company,
effective 6 February 2024.

In accordance with the Company’s Nomination &
Remuneration Policy and the performance evaluation
of the respective Directors, the Board, at its meeting
held on 2 May 2024, approved and recommended to
the shareholders the re-appointment of the following
Independent Directors for their approval by way of a
special resolution at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
scheduled to be held on 18 September 2024

Re-appointment of Mr. Anil Wadhwa (DIN: 08074310)
as an Independent Director for a second term of five
consecutive years with effect from 18 March 2025;

Re-appointment of Mr. Rakesh Sarin (DIN: 02082150)
as an Independent Director for a second term of five
consecutive years with effect from 18 March 2025;

Re-appointment of Ms. Himalyani Gupta (DIN:
00607140) as an Independent Director for a second
term of five consecutive years with effect from 18
March 2025.

Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhandari (DIN:00052716) and Mr. Nand
Gopal Khaitan (DIN: 00020588) will complete their second
term as Independent Directors of the Company at the
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting, thus
would cease to be Directors of the Company from the
said date.

None of the Directors of the Company have resigned
during the year under review.

Auditors and Auditors’ Reports

Statutory Auditors

At the 62" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company
held on 22 September 2022, the members approved
the re-appointment of M/s. Lodha & Co, (now known as
M/s. Lodha & CO LLP) Chartered Accountants, as statutory
auditors of the Company having Firm's Registration No.
301051E/E300284 to hold the office till the conclusion of
the 67t Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Notes on Financial Statements referred to in the
Auditors' report are self-explanatory and therefore do not
require any further comments.

There was no instance of fraud during the year under
review, which required the Statutory Auditors to report to
the Audit Committee and/or Board under Section 143(12)
of the Act and the rules made thereunder. The Auditors’

Annual Report 2023-24
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report does not contain any qualifications, reservations or
adverse remarks.

Secretarial Auditor

The Board had appointed M/s. DMK Associates, Company
Secretaries, New Delhi, FRN P2006DE003100 to conduct
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year
2023-24, pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the
Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The Secretarial
Audit Report in Form No. MR-3 for the financial year
2023-24 is enclosed as Annexure A to this Report. The
Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any observation
or adverse remark.

Conservation of Energy, Research and
Development, Technology Absorption, Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The details pertaining to conservation of energy, research
and development, technology absorption, foreign
exchange earnings and outgo as prescribed under Section
134(3)(m) of the Act read with the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 are enclosed as Annexure B to this Report.

Share Capital

During the year under review, there was no change in the
equity share capital of the Company. The paid-up Equity
Share Capital as on 31 March 2024 was % 1293.99 lakh.

Credit Ratings

During the year under review, the credit ratings of the
Company was reviewed by CARE Ratings Limited. A
detailed note on the credit ratings of the Company is
provided in the Corporate Governance Report section of
this Report.

Investor Education and Protection Fund
(IEPF)

Please refer note no.10 on IEPF in the Notice of ensuing
AGM which forms part of this Annual Report.

Annual Return

In accordance with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the extract
of Annual Return as required under Section 92(3) of the Act
and prepared in prescribed format, which will be filed with
the Registrar of Companies, is hosted on the Company's
website i.e. www.agigreenpac.com.

Management Discussion and Analysis
Report

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year
under review, as stipulated under Regulation 34(2)(e) of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), is

presented in a separate section forming part of this
Annual Report.

Business Responsibility and Sustainibility
Report

Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(f) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations read with and SEBI's Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated 11 July 2023,
your Company has provided the prescribed disclosures
in new reporting requirements on Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") parameters called the Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Report (“BRSR") which
includes performance against the nine principles of the
National Guidelines on Responsible Business Conduct
and the report under each principle which is divided into
essential and leadership indicators. Please refer BRSR
which forms part of this Annual Report.

Code for Prevention of Insider Trading

Your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct to
regulate, monitor and report trading by designated
persons and their immediate relatives (“Code") as per
the requirements under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015. The Code, inter alia, lays down the procedures
to be followed by designated persons while trading/
dealing in Company's shares and sharing Unpublished
Price Sensitive Information (“UPSI”). The Code covers
Company’s obligation to maintain a structured digital
database (“SDD"), mechanism for prevention of insider
trading and handling of UPSI, and the process to familiarise
with the sensitivity of UPSI. To increase awareness on the
prevention of insider trading in the organisation and to
help the Designated Persons to identify and fulfill their
obligations, regular trainings have been imparted to all
designated persons by the Company.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Your Directors in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Act
state that:

in the preparation of the annual accounts for the
year ended 31 March 2024, the applicable accounting
standards read with requirements set out under
Schedule Ill to the Act, had been followed and there
are no material departures from the same;

a)

the Directors had selected such accounting policies
and applied them consistently and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2024 and of the profit of the
Company for the year ended on that date;

c) the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care
for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventinganddetectingfraudandotherirregularities;

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a
‘going concern’ basis;
e) the Directors had laid down internal financial controls

to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating
effectively; and

f)  the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and
operating effectively.

Corporate Governance

The report on Corporate Governance as stipulated
under SEBI Listing Regulations forms an integral part of
this Report. The requisite certificate from the Practicing
Company Secretary confirming compliance with the
conditions of corporate governance is attached to the
report on Corporate Governance.

Contracts and Arrangements with Related
Parties

All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the
Company during the financial year with related parties
were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's
length basis. The disclosure in Form AOC-2 is enclosed as
Annexure C to this report.

The policy on materiality of related party transactions and
dealing with related party transactions as approved by the
Board may be accessed on the Company's website at the
link: Related Party Transaction Policy.

Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note
no. 55 to the financial statements which set out related
party disclosures.

Corporate Social Responsibility(CSR)

The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee (“CSR Committee”) in place as per the
provisions of Section 135 of the Act. The CSR Committee
comprising of Mr. Anil Wadhwa as Chairman and Mr. Sandip
Somany, Mrs. Sumita Somany and Mr. Rakesh Sarin as
other members of the Committee.

The Company's Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR
Policy) duly approved by the Board, indicates the activities
to be undertaken by the Company to fulfil the expectation
of our stakeholders and to continuously improve our
social, environmental and economical performance while
ensuring sustainability and operational success of our
Company. The Company would also undertake other
need based initiatives in compliance with Schedule VII to
the Act.

The guiding principles for all CSR initiatives of the Company
are as follows:
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- Establishing a guideline for compliance with the
provisions of Regulations to dedicate a percentage of
Company's profits for social projects;

« Ensuring the implementation of CSR initiatives in
letter and spirit through appropriate procedures and
reporting; and

- Creating opportunities for employees to participate in
socially responsible initiatives.

The CSR Policy may be accessed on the Company's
website at the link: Corporate Social Responsibility Policy.

The Annual Report on CSR Activities for the financial year
2023-24 is enclosed as Annexure D to this report.

Number of Board Meetings

During the year under review, Four (4) Board Meetings
were convened and held. For further details, please refer
Report on Corporate Governance which is forming part
of this Annual Report. The intervening gap between two
consecutive meetings was not exceeding the period
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of Independent Directors
namely Mr. V.K. Bhandarias Chairman and Mr. N.G. Khaitan,
Mr. Anil Wadhwa, Ms. Himalyani Gupta and Mr. Rakesh
Sarin as other members.

For further details, please refer Report on Corporate
Governance which is forming part of this Annual Report.

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee
were accepted by the Board.

Disclosure under Secretarial Standards

The Directors state that the Company has complied with
all the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The details with
respect to the composition, terms of reference, number
of meetings held, etc. of the statutory committees of the
Board of Directors are included in the Report on Corporate
Governance, which is forming part of this Annual Report.

Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower) Policy

The Company has in place a Whistle Blower Policy to
establish a vigil mechanism for Directors/Employees and
other stakeholders of the Company to report concerns
affecting the smooth and efficient running of operations
of the Company. This Policy documents the Company's
commitment to maintain an open work environment in
which employees, consultants and contractors are able
to report instances of unethical or undesirable conduct,
actual, suspected fraud or violation of the Company'’s
Code of Conduct.

Annual Report 2023-24
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The Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower) Policy is available on
Company'’s website at the link: Vigil Mechanism (Whistle

Blower) Policy.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Company has in place a Nomination and
Remuneration Policy for appointment of Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and fixation
of their remuneration, including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of
a director and other matters as per the Act and SEBI
Listing Regulations.

The Remuneration Policy is available on Company's
website at the link: Nomination and Remuneration Policy.

Dividend Distribution Policy

The Company has in place a Dividend Distribution Policy as
per Regulation 43A of SEBI Listing Regulations. The policy
was adopted to set out the parameters that will be taken
into account by the Board in determining the distribution of
dividend to its shareholders and/or retaining profit earned
by the Company. The Policy is available on Company's
website at the link: Dividend Distribution Policy.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and
Investments

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments covered
under Section 186 of the Act forms part of the notes to
the Financial Statements (Please refer Note Nos. 7, 8, 13
and 17).

Particulars of Employees

Information required as per Section 197(12) of the Act
read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
enclosed as Annexure E to this Report.

Disclosures relating to remuneration and other details
as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with
Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a
statement showing the names and other particulars of the
employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits
set out in the said rules are available with the Company.
Having regard to the provisions of the first proviso to
Section 136(1) of the Act, the Annual Report excluding
the aforesaid information is being sent to the members of
the Company. Any member interested in obtaining such
information may write to the Company Secretary and the
same will be furnished on request.

Internal Controls

The Company is committed to ensuring an effective
internal control environment that provides, inter alia,
an assurance on the orderly and efficient conduct of

operations, security of assets, prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, accurate and timely completion of
accounting records and timely preparation of reliable
financial information. The Company has an internal
control system, commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. The Company uses SAP
- a well-accepted Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
system to record data for accounting, consolidation, and
management information purposes and connects to
different locations for efficient exchange of information.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, comprising
of Independent Directors, reviews the effectiveness of the
internal control system across the Company including
annual plan, significant audit findings, adequacy of internal
controls and compliance with accounting policies and
regulations. The Company's internal control system is
monitored by independent consultants and supplemented
by in-house Internal Audit Division.

Internal Financial Controls

In line with best practices applicable to organisations
of a similar size, nature and complexity, the Company
has adequate Internal Financial Controls System which
ensures that all transactions are authorised, recorded,
and reported correctly in a timely manner. The Company's
Internal Financial Controls are designed to provide reliable
financial information and to comply with applicable
accounting standards.

Risk Management

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted
a Risk Management Committee to frame, implement and
monitor the risk management plan for the Company. The
Committee is responsible for monitoring and reviewing
the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness.
The Audit Committee has additional oversight in the area
of financial risks and controls. The major risks identified
by the businesses and functions are systematically
addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing
basis. The Company has also adopted a Risk Management
Policy which establishes various levels of accountability
and overview within the Company.

Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual
Harassment Policy in compliance with the requirements
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The
Company always endeavours to create and provide
an environment that is free from discrimination and
harassment including sexual harassment. The Internal
Complaints Committee (ICC) has been constituted to
redress complaints regarding sexual harassment, if any.

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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The Directors further state that during the year under
review, there were no complaints filed pursuant to the
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Company has received necessary declarations from
all the Independent Directors confirming that they meet
the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section
149(6) of the Actand SEBI Listing Regulations. In the opinion
of the Board, they fulfil the conditions of independence as
specified in the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations and are
independent of the management.

The Independent Directors of the Company are persons
of integrity and comprise of appropriate skills/expertise/
competencies (including proficiency) and have rich and
varied experience in diversified domains for effective
functioning of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors and Nomination and Remuneration
Committee reviewed the performance of the individual
Directors on the basis of the criteria and framework
adopted by the Board. In addition, the performance of
Board as a whole and committees were evaluated by the
Board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the
basis of various criteria.

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors,
performance of Non-Independent Directors, performance
of Board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was
evaluated, taking into account the views of the Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors. The evaluation
process has been explained in the Corporate Governance
Report section of this Annual Report.

Training of Independent Directors

The details of programmes conducted for familiarisation
of Independent Directors with the Company, nature of the
industry in which the Company operates, business model
of the Company, recent amendments/notifications etc.
has been uploaded on the Company’s website at the link:
Familiarization of Independent Directors

For further details, please refer Report on Corporate
Governance which is forming part of this Annual Report.

General

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is
required in respect of the following items as there were no
transactions on these items during the year under review:
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1. There is no change in nature of business of
the Company.

2. Details of revision of financial statement or the Report.

3. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V
of the Companies Act, 2013.

4. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to
dividend, voting or otherwise.

5. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to
employees of the Company under any scheme.

6. No significant or material orders were passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the
going concern status and Company's operations
in future.

7. The Company is not required to maintain cost records
as specified in Section 148(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

8. Neither any application is made nor any proceeding is
pending against the Company under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

9.  The Company has not defaulted in the repayment
of loans to the Banks or Financial Institutions.
Accordingly, disclosure relating to one-time
settlement with the Banks or Financial Institutions is
not applicable.

10. Details of difference between amount of the Valuation
done at the time of One Time Settlement and the
Valuation done while taking loans from the Banks or
Financial Institution alongwith the reasons thereof.
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assistance and co-operation received from the financial
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: 02 May 2024
Place: Gurugram

Sandip Somany
Chairman and Managing Director
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Annexure A

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

M/s. AGI Greenpac Limited
(Formerly known as HSIL Limited)
CIN - L51433WB1960PLC024539
2, Red Cross Place,

Kolkata -West Bengal 700001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance
of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by AGI Greenpac Limited
(Formerly Known as HSIL Limited) (hereinafter called
the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and
expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books,
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents
and authorised representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion,
the Company has during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31 March 2024 ("Audit Period”)
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes
and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter
along with Annexure 1 attached to this report.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March
2024 according to the provisions of:

() The Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the rules
made thereunder;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956

('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and

Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and
the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), Overseas
Direct Investment (ODI) and External Commercial
Borrowings (ECB); (No FDI and ECB were taken and
no ODI was given by the Company during the Audit
Period)

v)

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 (“SEBI Act"):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011 as amended till date;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
as amended till date;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 as amended till date; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Share Based Employee Benefits and sweat
equity) Regulations, 2021 as amended till date;
(Not applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period)

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021, as amended till date; (Not
applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Registrars to an lIssue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Act
and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021;
as amended till date; (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period) and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 as
amended till date; (Not applicable to the
Company during the Audit Period)

(vi) OTHER LAWS

As confirmed by the management, there is no
specific law applicable to the Company during the
audit period.

We have also examined compliance with the
applicable clauses of the following:
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(i)  Secretarial Standards (SS-1 and SS-2) issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) as
amended from time to time.

During the Audit Period, the Company has complied with
the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines
to the extent applicable, Standards, etc. as mentioned
above except:

SEBI has issued an Adjudication Order no. ORDER/BM/
RK/2024-25/30315 dated April 30, 2024 ("Order"), under
Section 15- | of the SEBI Act, 1992, read with Rule 5 of SEBI
(Procedure for Holding Inquiry and Imposing Penalties)
Rules, 1995 against the Company, imposing a penalty
% 5,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five Lakhs only) for violation
of provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("LODR Regulations”).

Based ontheinformationreceived and records maintained,
we further report that:

1.  The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive, Non-
executive, Women and Independent Directors. There
is no changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors during the Audit Period.

2. Adequate notice of at least seven days was given to
all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings along
with agenda and detailed notes on agenda and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation
at the meeting.

3. Majority decisions were carried through and
recorded in the minutes of the Meetings. Further
as informed, no dissent was given by any director
in respect of resolutions passed in the Board and
Committee meetings.

Based on the compliance mechanism established by the
Company and on the basis of the Compliance Certificate(s)
issued by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company pursuant to Regulation 17(8) under
SEBI Listing Regulations and report given by Company
Secretary under the Act taken on record by the Board of
Directors at their meeting (s), we further report that:

There are adequate systems and processes in the
Company commensurate with the size and operations
of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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We further report that during the Audit Period, the
Company has not incurred any specific event / action
that can have major bearing on the Company'’s affairs in
pursuance of above referred Laws, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards etc. except as follows;-

1. Special Resolution under Section 180(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013 was passed by the members
on June 26, 2023 through postal ballot for increase in
borrowing power of the Board of Directors from time
to time not exceeding ¥ 4,000 crores.

2. Special Resolution under Section 180(1)(a) of the
Companies Act, 2013 was passed by the members
on June 26, 2023 through postal ballot for Creation of
charges on Movable and Immovable Properties.

3. Pursuant to the submission of the resolution plan
by the Company for acquiring Hindusthan National
Glass & Industries Limited (“Corporate Debtor”) in
the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP")
of the Corporate Debtor under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016, the Resolution Professional
of the Corporate Debtor has issued a letter of intent
to the Company confirming that the committee
of creditors of the Corporate Debtor has approved
the said resolution plan. The Board of Directors of
the Company in its meeting held on 31 October
2022 has taken note of the same and accepted the
letter of intent. Further, the Hon'ble Competition
Commission of India has accorded its approval to
the aforesaid acquisition under sub-section (1) of
Section 31 of the Competition Act, 2002 vide its letter
dated 15 March 2023. The matter is pending with
NCLT, Kolkatta.

For DMK Associates
Company Secretaries

(Monika Kohli)

B. Com (H), FCS, LL.B. I.P.
Partner

FCS 5480, CP 4936

Peer Review No. 779/2020

Date: 02 May 2024
Place: New Delhi
UDIN: FO05480F000291007
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To

The Members,

M/s. AGI Greenpac Limited
(Formerly known as HSIL Limited)
CIN -L51433WB1960PLC024539
2, Red Cross Place, Kolkata

West Bengal 700001

ANNEXURE 1

Sub: Our Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year ended 31 March 2024 of even date is to be read along
with this letter

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility
of the Management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our Audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes
as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. We believe that the processes
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis
of our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and
appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the
Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules, and regulations and happening of
events etc.

The Compliance of the provisions of corporate and
other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards
is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of the
procedures on test basis.

Date: 02 May 2024
Place: New Delhi
UDIN: FO05480F000291007

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

As per the information provided by the Company,
there are no pending cases filed by or against
the Company which will have major impact on
the Company.

For DMK Associates
Company Secretaries

(Monika Kohli)

B. Com (H), FCS, LL.B. I.P.
Partner

FCS 5480, CP 4936

Peer Review No. 779/2020
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Annexure B

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Modified compressed air header line to reduce the

(A) Conservation of Energy
pressure drop in HP air line.

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of

energy

Energy conservation is one of the main focus area
of the Company. Close monitoring of power &
fuel consumption is done to minimise/recycle the
wastages and ensure optimum utilisation of energy
which leads to improvement in product efficiencies
which have direct impact on energy consumption.
Energy data is analysed on regular basis for
consumption trends and appropriate corrective
actions are taken accordingly. The Company keeps
itself updated of the technological upgradation and
innovations in manufacturing processes from the
similar fields. Based on the inputs, most energy
efficient equipment'’s are selected for the plants to
ensure optimum use of energy.

As a part of energy conservation, the Company took
following initiatives:

AGI GLASS

Conversion of Ordinary ceiling (60W) into BLDC
fans (37W).

Conversion of Conventional MV/MH Lights into
LED Lights 400W to 150W.

Providing level sensors for water tanks to avoid
pump running.

Reducing the set point of VHP compressor from
6.0Kg/cm2 to 5.2Kg/cm2, by installing Pneumatic
Booster for Furnace Camera. Thus reducing the
overall set point.

Installation of VFD Panel for operation of 3 x 55
KW cooling tower circulation pumps & 2 x 18 KW
cooling tower fans.

Globe valve with PID Control system to utilize
excess air for HP Boosting from VHP Compressor
as per the demand.

Compressed Air Leakage checking through the
leakage detector and immediately arresting.

Installation of Zero air loss auto drain valves for air
compressors internal and external coolers drains.

Installation of Pet Coke unloading system with PS
Pump by replacing the vacuum system.

300 KVAR Capacitor Bank installations to improve
PF from 0.985 to 0.995.

Installation of air curtains to prevent loss of cool air
at Decoration.

Replaced Cameron compressors-2 no's inter
coolers with high efficiency Copper pin coolers to
improve the thermal efficacy of compressors and
reduced power consumption in compressors.

Replaced one mould cooling blower with energy
efficient high-speed blowers that resulted in saving
in power consumption.

Modulation of compressors, identification and
arresting leakage of compressed air system
has resulted in reduction of compressed air
power consumption.

Installed dry screw vacuum pumps in place of liquid
ring in furnace-5, achieved power savings of 2100
Kwh / day

Frequent furnace exhaust ducts cleaning & ESP
internals cleaning with high pressure jet resulted in
reduction of energy consumption in ESP.

Installed additional cooling zone in 43 & 46 line and
reduced lehr natural gas consumption.

Reduction of LPG/NG Consumption by installingthe
Ribbon burners for cross & main conveyor heating.

Installation of flow meters to all consumptions
and connected to Scada for better monitoring
and optimization.

Provided alarm system for mould heating oven
gate open, to reduce the energy consumption.

Installed energy efficient blowers at Line no. - 26,
27,29 & 30.

Installed skylights on Ware houses sheds to use
natural light in day time.

Standby fuel heating reduced from 80 deg C to 45
deg C.

Installed Energy efficient 9000CFM compressor &
Modelling of compressors.

Installed and started one 9000CFM energy efficient
two stage centrifugal air compressor resulted in
saving of 3200 units/day in compressed air system.

Zero loss condensate drain valves installed to avoid
compressed air loss in compressors.

Replaced old compressed air 20" pipe line
with new internally coated pipe line to reduce
energy consumption.

Changed location of HP air dryer to reduce
pressure drop.
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« Replaced conventional street lights with
hybrid lights.

+ Installed motion sensors in all control rooms to
avoid continuous glowing of lights. .

- Replaced compressor water pump with energy
efficient water pump.

+ Replaced pneumatic vibrators with electrical
vibrators at single liners to reduce the
energy consumption.

- Installed air boosters at packing machines and case
packers to avoid the requirement of high pressure.

+ Installation of 2.8MWp roof top solar panels is
in process. 1t phase of 700 KW completed and .
remaining to be completed till end of May-24.

« NHWIII Furnace checkers changed online to reduce
the thermal energy consumption.

« NHWII  Furnace rebuild completed with
new technology to reduce the thermal
energy consumption.

Il. AGICLOZURE

Arrest the compressed air leakage points @102 .
CFM/Annum and reduced the CO2 Emissions
potential by approx. 110 Ton per Annum

Improved the operational performance of Air .
Compressor (Kaiser 725CFM & IR 410CFM) which
resulted in an increase of the volumetric efficiency

Digitalization in AGI Clozures during FY 2023-24 - Phase-1 : Utilities

from 59% to 97% as well as from 86% to 97%
respectively and reduced the CO, Emissions
potential by approx. 55 Tons per Annum.

Installed flexible hose connects of the AHU duct
to individual Injection Molding Machines, reducing
the mold temperature to avoid mold sweating
thereby reducing the power consumption of the
AHU chiller which was earlier wasted to cool the
entire shop floor.

Automation done in the Machines PRT-218, PRT-
205, and PRT-202 (UV Silk Screen, Dry Offset & Pad
Printing) to control air blowing functions as per
requirement thereby reducing air consumption.

Installed the heat air exhaust system at UPS room
and controlled the room temp which increased
the efficiency of the UPS and reduced the AHU
Power consumption.

Overall reduction in energy consumption (KWH/
Mn Pieces) by 14.6% compared to the previous
year FY2022-23.

Saving of Water Consumption (KL/Mn Pieces) by
12.76% compared to the previous year FY2022-23.

Digital upgradation of the energy management
system to minutely monitor the Air &Power
consumption and to optimise it.

Upgradation & enhancement of EB Power-
2500KVA to 5000KVA within the same HT/LT
power panel room.

Description Qty. Capital Investment (INR-LACS) Key Benefits

Upgradation of EMS Software

Access to Compressor - IR

]
3
Access to Compressor -Kaeser 2
Access to Chillers - Trane 4 8.52
1
1
5

PCS -Raw Material Feeding
CCS- Raw Material feeding

Bartem Flow Meters 10.85

2.5 Utilities have been digitalised and results for Air and Power
consumption being monitored on dashboards created to
help analyse and reduce overall operational cost.

Total 21.87 Target Saving : 3 to 5% on Total Utilities Power
Consumption
(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilising - Installed rooftop solar power with rating 996 KWp.

alternate sources of energy

I. AGIGLASS

40 Solar street lights have been installed in workers
colony at Bhongir.

The Company is in the process of exploring
possibilities to set up waste heat recovery power
plant for appox 1.2 MW at its Bhongir unit. .

Onanaverage 4000 units of electricity is generated
on a normal sunny day.

Installation of 2800KWp Roof Top solar power
plantisin process.

Transparent sheets in all warehouses sheds
installed to get natural light in day time.

Hybrid street lights installed to use solar energy.

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.



Corporate Overview Statutory Reports  Financial Statements

Il. AGICLOZURES

Solar Power generation & its utilisation increased by approx. 24.2% in the Clozures unit w.r.t the previous year
FY2022-23

Reduction of the Diesel Consumption by 62.7% w.r.t the previous year FY2022-23

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments:

Capital
investments .
Energy saving / . . .
on energy annum (units in Financial saving
conservation u uKIWI!| (R in Lacs)
- )
S. equipments
No. Capital Equipment (Rin Lacs)
I AGI GLASS
1 300 KVAR Capacitor Bank installations to improve PF from 0.985 to 28 2,98,560 19.85
0.995.
VFD Panel for pump house pumps & CT Fans 12 1,25,000 8.75
Cameron compressors- 3 no's inter coolers replace with high thermal 60 19,58,539 129
efficiency coolers and discharge header Modification.
4 Installed one new 6750 Cfm H.P compressor having capacity of 6795 200 5,25,600 2775
CFM - IR make centac compressor for reduction Power units.
5 Installed Zero air loss auto drains for centac compressors coolers 10 2,89,430 19.10
6 9000Cfm Energy efficient centac compressor installed 186 11,21,645 88.8
7 Replaced NHW-2 Mould cooling blowers with energy efficient Blowers 60 6,73,516 53
8 Replaced old 20" compressed air pipe line with new internally coated 90 76,650 6.07
pipe line
9 Installed skylights with roof sheet replacement on Ware houses sheds 25 14,600 1.16
to use natural light in day time
Il. AGICLOZURES
1 Digitalisation of Utilities 21.87 12,000 6.0
Arrest the compressed air leakage points 0 80,000 6.4
Automation done in the Machines PRT-218, PRT-205, and PRT-202 to 0 15,000 1.20
control air blowing functions
4 Installed flexible hose connecting the AHU duct to individual Injection 1.20 15,000 1.20
Molding Machines
5 Solar Power generation & its utilisation increased by approx.24.2% 0 1.61L 6.46

(B) Technology Absorption

I. The efforts made towards technological absorption

The Company has been making continuous efforts to absorb the latest technological developments and has taken
following steps:

I. AGIGLASS

Installed the Magnetic separator for sand and raw materials to improve the Glass quality in speciality glass plant.
Gob Optical Measurement system in L-96 to measure the online temperature of GOB.

Abnormal Height Inspection system in L-91, to inspection of height of bottles.

Colour Shade detection system in Decoration quality lab.

Extra cooling blowers added in the Working End & FH area to control the temperature more efficiently in FH.
On line energy management under progress.

On line PM module & down time report implemented.

Cullet sorting plant processing capacity enhanced from 250 TPD to 500TPD and installed cullet fines (2-6 mm
size) recovery optical sorter equipment’s to reduce waste generation from cullet processing unit.

New set of HTPCC with latest replays panel installed for Centac 3 & 4.
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Upgradation of one 1.25MVA transformeris done by
2.5MVA transformer and latest relay panel installed.

Installed 2.0MW new DG set to run the plant
without interruption during power changeovers.

Installed NHWII cold end cooling system to reduce
cold end temperature 4 to 6 degC.

Installed automatic fire detection and suppression
system NHWII load centre panels to avoid any
major fire accident.

Installed smoke detectors in all control rooms to
avoid any fire accident.

Three panel of HT PCC replaced in NHWIII
load centre

3.5MVA transformer
6.0MVA transformer.

replaced with

Upgraded protection circuit with CG

numerical relays.

Installed 500KVA UPS for ESPs to avoid suit
carryover during power failure.

New Sanjin inspection machines installed on line
no. -25 & 29.

Two nos. 800Kg/Hr LPG Vaporizers with 100%
capacity utilization

AGI CLOZURES

Established Experience Centre during the year
and initiated improvement activities for quality,
productivity and value added products. Initiated
and celebrated Quality Month to involve the entire
work force

Developed locally new laser printing machine for
T-Cork as well as modified the old laser printing
machine to accommodate both Wood and
Plastic applications

Developed local source for dry off-set UV printing
machine to substitute the imported MOSS dry off-
set UV Printing machine

Installed Vision Detection System for the top print
defects identification for the Nipace, Supercap and
2K Closures.

Deputing concerned personnel to relevant
seminars, symposiums, and workshops to upgrade
skills and knowledge

The benefits derived like product improvement,
cost reduction, product development orimport
substitution

AGI GLASS

Improvement in operational efficiency.

Developed in-house
development capabilities.

product design and

Local retrofitting of hot end coating M/c blower
motor, ACL M/c and Cameron compressor has
resulted in significant cost savings.

Chrome insert for metering orifice ring for long job
runs to increase the life of orifice ring and to reduce
frequent machine stoppage to change the orifice
rings and machine stability.

Section cooling on/off controlling changed to push
type valves to easy access for work from shop floor
during any section stoppages

Line-25 new section frame installed, Quality improved.

Line-27 Flex IS Electronic control installed,
Efficiency improved

Line 30 new IS Machine installed, productivity improved.

Line 28 & 29 ware handling sheppee installed,
Efficiency improved.

Line 27, 28 & 29 Forhearth design changed, Quality
and energy improved.

AGI CLOZURES

Improvement in Plant overall efficiency to 86.70%

Import substitution of mould spares/machines
spares/slitting blades for cost reduction

Developed indigenous premium products for
customers at Clozures unit.

Utilization of non-prime grade HDPE plastic
material to reduce RM footprint.

Conversion of unused Krallman Voila Outer Cap to
Nip Ace Outer Cap mould where we saved cost of
approx.3 110 Cr.

Increased the productivity of the Voila-Nipcap by
7%

Upgraded and established in-house testing facility
by installing new machines for Opening Torque,
Capping & De-capping, Air Leakage to reduce
overall inspection time and optimum utilisation of
resources with precision of measurement system
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lll. In case of imported technology (imported during last three years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year):

I. AGIGLASS
If not fully
absorbed, areas
Status of where absorption
implementation/ has not taken
Technology absorption, in case fully place, and the
Details of technology imported import from Year of import absorbed reasons thereof
Sanjin BC Inspection Machine China 2023-24 Installation in process
Machine-25 Sanjin new section frames China 2023-24 Fully absorbed
Machine-25 Bottero timing system with EGD Italy 2023-24 Fully absorbed
Machine-27 Machine conveyor with Flex pushers China 2023-24 Fully absorbed
and shear mechanism
Machine-28 Sheppee Ware transfer UK 2023-24 Fully absorbed
Machine-29 Sheppee ware transfer and stacker UK 2023-24 Fully absorbed
Machine-29 mechanism repair spare parts for Italy 2023-24 Under process
B-class
Machine-30 AIS machine tandem 8+8 China 2023-24 Fully absorbed
Sanjin M inspection Machine China 2023-24 Fully absorbed
Cameron Compressor India 2023-24 Fully absorbed
Binder Austria 2023-24 Fully absorbed
Cullet Scraper System Germany 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Additional Compressors -2 Qty And Dryers- 2 Qty China 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Cold End Coating M/Cs ( 03 Nos) Singapore 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Ware Handling & Joint Body - Vft-2000 Lh Line United Kingdom 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Handheld Agr Wall Thickness Probe USA 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Cullet Sorting System ( Optical Cullet Sorting Austria 2021-22 Fully absorbed
System)
Cullet Scrapper System Germany 2021-22 Fully absorbed
Modification In Rebuild Of Furnace Germany 2021-22 Fully absorbed
IS Machine For New Lines Germany 2021-22 Fully absorbed.
Timing Control System For IS Machine Italy 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Electronic 535 GOB DISTRIBUTOR China 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Teka Mixer Gear Box Germany 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Machine Right Hand Electronic Gob Distributor Italy 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Electronic Upgradation Timing System Italy 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Section Boxes For IS Machine China 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Line- 85mm Tg Electronic Timing System China 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Upgradation
Nnpb Requirment Graphoidal Shear Spray System United Kingdom 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Line
Sheppee Ware Transfer Wheel & Drive Unit United Kingdom 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Blank And Blowmold Aligning Fixture 4 1/4"T Italy 2022-23 Fully absorbed
IS MACHINE 5" IS-8 DG- Ware Handling And Stackers China 2022-23 Fully absorbed
IS MACHINE 85 Mm IS -10 TG Ware Handling And China 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Stackers
IS MACHINE 64 Mm IS-8 QG China 2022-23 Fully absorbed
IS MACHINE 64 Mm IS - 6+6 QG Tandem China 2022-23 Fully absorbed
IS MACHINE 5 1/2" IS-10 DG Ware Handling And China 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Stackers
Single Print Auto-1nos & Automatic 3 Station-Thos ~ China 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Techno Five- 1 Nos (Refurbish) Italy 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Semi Auto Print-10 Nos + Flat-1 Nos + Hfs-2 Nos Thailand 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Sg Conversion For 10 Section 5-1/2" Dg Mc Line China 2022-23 Fully absorbed
Dry Offset for Product- Nip Cap OMSO- Italy M/s. Hem Fully Absorbed
Automation-
Mumbai
Cutting & Assembly-Nip Cap MACA-Italy M/s. Hem Fully Absorbed
Automation-
Mumbai
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If not fully
absorbed, areas

Status of where absorption
implementation/ has not taken
Technology absorption, in case fully place, and the
Details of technology imported import from Year of import absorbed reasons thereof
Bulldog Cap Mold design UK M/s. Vasantha Fully Absorbed
Tools,
Hyderabad
Sg Conversion Kit For Line Italy 2022-23 Fully absorbed
IS MACHINE 5" IS-8 DG- ware handling and stackers  China 2022-23 Fully absorbed
IS MACHINE 85 mm IS -10 TG ware handling and China 2022-23 Fully absorbed
stackers
Timing System for M/C M/C - Section Boxes RE ltaly 2021 Fully absorbed
conditioned(SHAMVIK)
Line Pick and Placer machine India 2021 Fully absorbed

Il. AGICLOZURE

In case of imported machine technology (Substituted machines imported during last three years by

developing Indian Equivalent):

Machine
Technology from from Co.

Details of technology imported

Status of
implementation/

Indian Machine/Mold Substitute

fully absorbed

If not fully absorbed, areas
where absorption has
absorption, in case not taken place, and the
reasons thereof

Dry Offset for Product- Nip Cap OMSO- Italy

M/s. Hem Automation-Mumbai

Fully Absorbed

Cutting & Assembly-Nip Cap

MACA-Italy

M/s. Hem Automation-Mumbai

Fully Absorbed

Fully Absorbed UK

M/s. Vasantha Tools, Hyd

Fully Absorbed

\"A
forex outgo:

Design and development of New Products with Mould manufacturing in India to reduce precious

Status of implementation/

Sr. absorption, in case fully
no. New Product designed and developedinindia  Mould Manufactured from absorbed

1 BULLDOG CAP MOULD M/s Vasantha Tools, Hyderabad Fully Absorbed
2 ROYAL RANTHAMBORE NIP CLOSURE M/s.Leo Precision, Silvassa Fully Absorbed
3 ROYAL RANTHAMBORE 47 CLOSURE M/s.Leo Precision, Silvassa Fully Absorbed
4 MAGIC MOMENTS DAZZLE CLOSURE M/s.Leo Precision, Silvassa Fully Absorbed
5 MAGIC MOMENTS VERVE CLOSURE M/s.Leo Precision, Silvassa Fully Absorbed
6 HAPPINESS CROWN M/s. DDS, Hyderabad Fully Absorbed
7 SUNSHINE NIP CLOSURE M/s. Marvel, Hyderabad Fully Absorbed
8 SUNHINE 59 CLOSURE M/s.Leo Precision, Silvassa Fully Absorbed
9 IMPERIAL CROWN M/s.SVS, Hyderabad Fully Absorbed
10  ALEX CROWN M/s. Marvel, Hyderabad Fully Absorbed

V. Expenditure incurred on Research and Development

(T in lakh)

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Capital Expenditure 249.74

Recurring Expenditure 93.68 50.86

Total 93.68 300.60

Total R&D expenditure as a % of relevant sales 0.04% 0.15%
VI Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

(T in lakh)

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Earnings in Foreign Currency 4,048.00 5,681.02

Outgo of foreign currency 28,270.20 26,837.69

-Capital Equipment 5,365.00 5,253.52

-Raw material, spare part and others 22,905.20 21,584.17

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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Form No. AOC-2

Annexure C

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's

length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

(a) (b) (<) (d) (e) (f) (9) (h)

Date on which

the special

resolution

was passed

in general

Salient terms of meeting as
Name(s) of the contracts or Justification for required under
therelated Nature of Duration of arrangements  entering into first proviso to
party and contracts/ the contracts/  ortransactions such contracts Date(s) of Section 188 of
nature of arrangements/ arrangements/ including the orarrangements approval by the Amountpaidas the Companies
relationship transactions transactions value, if any or transactions Board advances, if any Act, 2013
NIL

Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

(a) (b) (<) (d) (e) ()

Salient terms of

Duration of the contracts or
Name(s) of the related Nature of contracts/ the contracts/ arrangements or
party and nature of arrangements/ arrangements/ transactions including Date(s) of approval by Amount paid as
relationship transactions transactions the value, if any the Board, if any advances, if any
NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sandip Somany

Chairman and Managing Director
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Annexure D

FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE
BOARD’S REPORT FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-2024

1 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company

Please refer Corporate Social Responsibility section which forms part of Directors’' Report. For detailed CSR Policy,
please refer Company's website at the link: CSR Policy

2 Composition of CSR Committee

Number of meetings of CSR

S. Number of meetings of CSR Committee attended during
No. Name of Director Designation / Nature of Directorship Committee held during the year the year
1 Mr. Anil Wadhwa Chairman of the Committee and 4 4
Independent Director of the Company
2 Mr. Sandip Somany Member of the Committee and 4 3
Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company
3 Mrs. Sumita Somany Member of the Committee and Non- 4 3

executive Non-Independent Director of
the Company

4 Mr. Rakesh Sarin Member of the Committee and 4 4
Independent Director of the Company

3 Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR
projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.
https://agigreenpac.com/disclosures-under-regulation-46-of-the-lodr/

4 Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance
of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).

N.A
5 (a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5). 220,600.84 Lakhs
(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) ¥412.02 Lakhs
(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the NIL
previous financial years.
(d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any NIL
(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year ((b)+(c)-(d)). % 412.02 Lakhs
6 (a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (Both Ongoing Project and Other than ¥412.06 Lakhs
Ongoing Projects)
(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads NIL
(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable N.A.
(d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year ((a) +(b) +(c)) ¥412.06 Lakhs

(e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in %)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Total Amount Spent for Account as per section 135(6). Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5).
the Financial Year. (in ¥) Amount Date of transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer
4,12,06,488 NIL NIL

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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(f) Excess amount for set off, if any

fll‘; Particular Amount (in3)
(i)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 4,12,01,686
(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 4,12,06,488
(i) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 4,802
(iv)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any NIL
(v)  Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 4,802

7 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA

Amount

Amount transferred remaining to

Amount transferred Amountspent to any fund specified be spentin

to Unspent CSR in the reporting under Schedule Vil as succeeding
Sl. Preceding Account under Financial Year  per section 135(6), financial years.
No Financial Year section 135 (6) (in%) (in¥) if any. (in¥)

Name of the Fund Amount Date of transfer

1 FY 2022-23
2 FY 2021-22 Not Applicable
3 FY 2020-21

8 Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: 2023-24 ves

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: 1

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:

Short particulars

of the property or

asset(s) [including

complete address  Pincode of

S. and location of the the property Amount of CSR  Details of entity/ Authority/ beneficiary of the registered
No. property] or asset(s) Date of creation spent owner
1 2 3 4 5 6
CSR Registration Name Registered
Number, if address
applicable
1 Skill Training 508116 30-03-2024 16505140 CSR00003455 HSIL Corporate 2 Red Cross
Centre, Bhongir, Social Place,
Telangana Responsibility Kolkata-700001
Foundation

9 Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5).

During the year, the Company has spent ¥ 412.06 lakhs towards CSR activities, which is above two per cent of the
average net profit of the Company made during the three immediately preceding financial year.

Sandip Somany Anil Wadhwa

Chairman and Managing Director Chairman of CSR Committee
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Annexure E

DETAILS PERTAINING TO EMPLOYEES AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

A. The information required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employee of the
Company and percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer, Company Secretary for the financial year:

% increase/

Ratio to met‘:lian (decrease) in
remuneration® remuneration in
Name of the Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary the financial year*
Executive Directors
Mr. Sandip Somany, Chairman and Managing Director 370.21 67
Non-executive Directors
Mrs. Sumita Somany, Non-executive Director 5.64 (13.05)
Mr. Vijay Kumar Bhandari, Independent Director 6.58 (6.69)
Mr. Nand Gopal Khaitan, Independent Director 6.64 (7.42)
Mr. Girdhari Lal Sultania, Non-executive Director 5.72 (13.86)
Mr. Anil Wadhwa, Independent Director 6.36 (8.05)
Ms. Himalyani Gupta, Independent Director 6.24 (10.58)
Mr. Rakesh Sarin, Independent Director 6.76 (3.78)
Mr. Om Prakash Pandey, Chief Financial Officer 42.92 (10)
Mr. Pulkit Bhasin, Company Secretary NAS NAS
Mr. Ompal, Company Secretary NA# NA#

* Remuneration includes sitting fees and is calculated on paid basis and as per the Income Tax Act, 1961
$ Resigned as KMP effective 10.11.2023, therefore this ratio cannot be calculated

# Appointed as KMP w.e.f. 06.02.2024, therefore this ratio cannot be calculated
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(ii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:

6%

(iii) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31 March 2024:
1416

(iv) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of the employees other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in

the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional
circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

Average percentile increase made in the salaries of the employees other than the managerial personnel in the
financial year 2023-2024 over financial year 2022-2023: 15%

Average percentile increase made in the remuneration of the managerial personnel in the financial year 2023-2024
over financial year 2022-2023: 67%

(v) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

The Company affirms that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.
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Report on Corporate Governance

Company Philosophy

Good governance is beyond the realm of law. AGI
Greenpac Limited believes that effective corporate
governance practices constitute the strong foundation
on which successful organizations are built to last. Strong
leadership and effective corporate governance practices
have been the Company's hallmark inherited from its
culture and beliefs. Your Company works towards building
an environment of Trust, Transparency and Accountability
focusing on the long-term. Your Company has put in place
an internal governance structure with defined roles and
responsibilities of every constituent of the system.

Your Company has institutionalized corporate governance
as an integral part of the Company for creation and
enhancement of long-term sustainable value for the
stakeholders,  comprising regulators, employees,
customers, vendors, investors, and the society at large,
through ethically driven business practices. In addition
to complying with the statutory requirements, effective
governance systems and practices towards improving
transparency, disclosures, internal control and promotion
of ethics at workplace have been embedded. The
Company recognizes that good governance is a continuing
exercise and reiterates its commitment to pursue highest
standards of corporate governance in the overall interest
of its stakeholders.

A. Board of Directors

The Company acknowledges and fully embraces the
significance of having a diverse Board in its success. Your
Company believes that a truly diverse Board will harness
differences in theories, outlook, industry experience,
knowledge, skills etc. The Company is managed and
controlled by a professional Board comprising of
Executive and Non-executive professional Directors with
considerable professional expertise and experience to
provide leadership and guidance to the management
thereby enhancing Stakeholders’ value. During the
FY 2023-24, the Board of Directors consisted of Eight
Directors out of which five (i.e. 62.50%) were Independent
Directors, two (i.e. 25.00%) were Non-Executive Non-
Independent Directors and one (i.e. 12.50%) was Executive

Director. The composition of the Company’s Board is in
conformity with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
("Act") and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“Listing Regulations”).

As on 31 March 2024, none of the Director on the
Company'’s Board was a Director in more than 10 Public
Companies (including 7 Listed Companies), neither a
Chairman of more than 5 Committees nor a member of
more than 10 Committees in all the public companies in
which they are Directors. Further, all the Directors have
made necessary disclosures regarding their Directorships
and Chairmanship/Membership in Committees of other
companies as per the requirements under the Listing
Regulations, Act and other applicable provisions, if any.

No Director is related to any other Director on the Board
as on 31 March 2024, except Mr. Sandip Somany and
Mrs. Sumita Somany (Wife of Mr. Sandip Somany).

Appointment of the Chairman and Managing Director
including the tenure of his appointment and terms of his
remuneration is approved by the members.

Four Board meetings were held during FY 2023-24.
The dates, on which the Board meetings were held, are
as follows:

4 May 2023, 25 July 2023, 26 October 2023 and 6
February 2024.

Dates for the Board meetings are decided well in advance
to enable the Directors to plan their schedules to facilitate
participation in the meetings. The Agenda, along with
the supporting documents, explanatory notes and
information, as enumerated under Listing Regulations,
are made available to the Board along with the notice of
respective meetings in advance in order to enable them to
make value addition and discharge their duties diligently
during the meetings. The Board periodically reviews
compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company.
The Company undertakes steps to rectify instances of
non-compliance, if any.
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The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, along with their attendance at the Board meetings held during
the year ended 31 March 2024, and at the last Annual General Meeting, and the number of other Directorships and
Chairmanship/Membership of Committees and number of equity shares held by them, are given below:

No. of Whether Committee position of other
Boardmeetings attended the No. of other Companies™* No. of Equity
attended last AGM Directorships* K Shares held

Name of the Director during tenure Chairperson Member
Executive
Mr. Sandip Somany (Chairman and 4 Yes 6 Nil 3 55,97,731
Managing Director)
DIN: 00053597
Non-executive and Non - Independent
Mrs. Sumita Somany 3 No 1 Nil Nil 1,61,000
DIN: 00133612
Mr. G. L. Sultania 4 Yes 8 1 2 705
DIN: 00060931
Non-executive and Independent
Mr. N. G. Khaitan 4 Yes 5 2 4 132
DIN: 00020588
Mr. V. K. Bhandari 4 Yes 5 2 3 Nil
DIN: 00052716
Mr. Anil Wadhwa 4 Yes 2 Nil 1 1,000
DIN: 08074310
Ms. Himalyani Gupta 4 Yes 1 1 Nil Nil
DIN: 00607140
Mr. Rakesh Sarin 4 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil

DIN: 02082150

*This includes Directorship in public limited companies (including subsidiaries of public limited companies) and excludes Directorships in this
Company, associations, private, foreign and Section 8 companies.

** Represents Chairmanships/Memberships of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship (Shareholders/Investors’ Grievance)

Committee. This includes Chairmanship/Membership in public limited companies (including subsidiaries of public limited companies) and
excludes Chairmanship/Membership in this Company, private, foreign and Section 8 companies.

Name of Listed Companies in which Directors hold Directorship other than AGI Greenpac Limited

:l.o. Name of Director Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship
1. Mr. Sandip Somany + JKPaper Limited Independent Director
Hindware Home Innovation Limited Non-Executive Chairman
Mrs. Sumita Somany Nil N.A.
Mr. G. L. Sultania +  Hindware Home Innovation Limited Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
4. Mr. N.G. Khaitan + Hindware Home Innovation Limited Independent Director
Mangalam Cement Limited Independent Director
Reliance Chemotex Industries Limited Non-Executive Non-Independent Director
JK Lakshmi Cement Limited Independent Director
Shyam Metalics and Energy Limited Independent Director
5. Mr V. K. Bhandari «  Jayant Agro-Organics Limited Independent Director
Supershakti Metaliks Limited Independent Director
PHF Leasing Limited Nominee Director
6.  Mr. Anil Wadhwa « Cosmo First Limited Independent Director
Ms. Himalyani Gupta + Cosmo Ferrites Limited Independent Director
Mr. Rakesh Sarin Nil N.A.
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Core Skills/Expertise/Competencies of Directors

The existing Board of Directors of the Company have appropriate skills/expertise/competencies in diversified domains
for the effective functioning of the Company. Further, the Board has identified the skills/expertise/competencies of
each Director in accordance with their rich and varied experience across different sectors, in the following manner:

Name of Directors

Mr. Nand Mr. Vijay Ms.
Mr.Sandip  Mrs. Sumita Mr. Girdhari Gopal Kumar Mr. Anil Himalyani Mr. Rakesh

Area of Expertise Somany Somany Lal Sultania Khaitan Bhandari Wadhwa Gupta Sarin
Strategy v v - . v . v
Business Administration v v - - - v - v
Management v v v v v v v v
Corporate Governance v v v v v v v v
Engineering & v - - - - - - v
Manufacturing
Sales & Marketing v - - - - - - v
Community Services v v - - - v v
Human Resources v - - - v B B}
Business Development - v - . v B v
Finance v - v v v _ _ ,
Legal - - v v v - v _
Global Vision - - - - . v _ ,
Government Relations - - - - - v R -
Energy Sector - - - - - - _ v

- - - - v

Project Development - - -

The Board confirms that the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Listing Regulations and are

independent of the Management.

During the FY 2023-24, none of the independent Directors resigned from the Board of Directors of the Company.

b. Committees of the Board

The Board of Directors have constituted the following
Committees for better governance with adequate
delegation of powers to discharge the Company's
requisite businesses:

+ Audit Committee

« Corporate Affairs Committee

- Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
+ Nomination and Remuneration Committee

- Stakeholders Relationship
Grievance) Committee

(Shareholders’/Investors'

+ Share Transfer Committee
- Risk Management Committee

The minutes of the meetings of all such committees are
placed before the Board for discussion/noting.

Details of the composition, number of meetings held
during the year, attendance of members and scope of the
committees are as below:

Audit Committee

Composition

As on 31 March 2024, the Committee comprised of five
Independent Directors. Mr. V. K. Bhandari, an ex-banker
and financial expert, is the Chairman of the Committee.
The quorum of the Committee is two members or one-
third of the members, whichever is higher with at least
two Independent Directors. The Chairman and Managing
Director, President of Division, Finance Head, General
Counsel, IT Head, Statutory Auditors and the Internal
Auditors are invitees to the meetings of the Audit
Committee. The business and operation heads are invited
to the meetings, as and when required. The Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

Meetings and Attendance

During the year, five meetings of the Audit Committee
were held on 4 May 2023, 25 July 2023, 26 October 2023, 6
February 2024 and 23 February 2024.

The Chairman of the Audit Committee attended the
Company's last Annual General Meeting.

The following table summarises attendance of Members
of Audit Committee:

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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No. of No. of
meetings meet.ings
held during attended
Name of Members Status the tenure
Mr. V. K. Bhandari Chairman 5 5
Mr. N. G. Khaitan Member 5 4
Mr. Rakesh Sarin Member 5 5
Mr. Anil Wadhwa Member 5 5
Ms. Himalyani Gupta Member 5 4

The Committee's existing composition meets with
requirements of Section 177 of the Act and Listing
Regulations. Members of the Audit Committee possess
financial/ accounting expertise/exposure.

Scope of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, inter alia, supports the Board to
ensure an effective internal controls environment. The
Committee discharges such duties and functions with
powers generally indicated in Listing Regulations.

The scope of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Powers of Audit Committee

1.

To investigate any activity within its terms

of reference;
To seek information from any employee;

To obtain outside other

advice; and

legal or professional

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant
expertise, if it considers necessary.

Terms of Reference

Overseeing the Company's financial reporting process
and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure
that the financial statements are correct, adequate
and credible;

Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-
appointment and, if required, the replacement or
removal of the Statutory Auditors and the fixation of
audit fee;

Approving payment to Statutory Auditors for any other
services rendered by them;

Reviewing, with the Management, the Annual Financial
Statements and Auditor's report thereon before
submission to the Board for approval, with particular
reference to, (a) Matters required to be included in the
Director's Responsibility Statement to be included in
the Board's report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 3
of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; (b) Changes,
if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons
for the same; (c) Major accounting entries involving
estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
Management; (d) Significant adjustments made in the
Financial Statements arising out of audit findings; (e)

Statutory Reports  Financial Statements

Compliance with listing and other legal requirements
relating to Financial Statements; (f) Disclosure of any
related party transactions; and (g) Qualifications in the
draft audit report, if any;

Reviewing, with the Management, the Quarterly
Financial Statements before submission to the Board
for approval;

Reviewing, with the Management, the statement
of uses/application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue etc.), the
statement of funds utilised for purposes other than
those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice
and the report submitted by the agency monitoring
the utilisation of proceeds of a public or rights issue, if
any, and making appropriate recommendations to the
Board to take up steps in this matter;

Reviewing and monitoring the auditor's independence
and performance and effectiveness of audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of
transactions of the Company with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company,
wherever it is necessary;

Reviewing, with the Management, the performance of
Statutory and Internal Auditors and adequacy of the
internal control system;

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function,
if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure coverage
and frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit
commences, about the nature and scope of audit as
well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area
of concern;

Reviewing reports of internal audit and discussing with
Internal Auditors on any significant findings of any
internal investigations by the Internal Auditors and the
executive management's response on matters and
follow-up thereon;

Reviewing reports of Cost audit, if any, and discussion
with Cost Auditors on any significant findings by them;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations
by the Internal Auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal
control systems of material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board;

To review the functioning of the Vigil
Blower) mechanism;

(Whistle

Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time
Finance Directororany other personheading thefinance
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function or discharging that function) after assessing
the qualifications, experience and background etc. of
the candidate;

« Recommending to the Board, the appointment and
fixation of remuneration of Cost Auditors, if applicable;

- Evaluating Internal Financial Controls and Risk
Management Systems and reviewing the Company's
financial and risk management policies;

- Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults, if
any, in payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared
dividends) and creditors;

- Reviewing the Management Discussion and Analysis of
financial condition and results of operation;

- Reviewing the statement of significant related-

party transactions;

+ Reviewing the Management letters/letters of internal
control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors;

« To review the appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor;

- To review the internal audit report relating to internal
control weaknesses;

« To review compliance with the provisions of the SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015,
as amended from time to time, and verify that the
systems for internal controls are adequate and are
operating effectively;

« Toreview the utilization of loans and/or advances from/
investment by the Company in its subsidiary companies
exceeding % 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the
subsidiary, whichever is lower; and

- To consider and comment on rationale, cost-
benefits and impact of schemes involving merger,
demerger, amalgamation etc., on the Company and
its shareholders.

Corporate Affairs Committee

Composition

As on 31 March 2024, the Company's Corporate Affairs
Committee comprised of one Executive Director, two
Independent Directors and one Non-executive Non-
Independent Director. Mr. Sandip Somany, Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company, is Chairman of the
Committee. The quorum of the Committee is either two
members or one-third of the total members, whichever is
higher. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to
the Committee.

Meetings and Attendance

The Corporate Affairs Committee met on six occasions
during FY 2023-24, on 8 April 2023, 10 August 2023, 19

October 2023, 15 January 2024, 13 February 2024 and 18
March 2024.

The following table summarises the attendance details of
the Members of the Corporate Affairs Committee:

No. of

" No. of
Meetings .
. meetings
held during attended
Name of Members Status the tenure

Mr. Sandip Somany Chairman 6 6
Mr. Rakesh Sarin Member 6 6
Mr. Anil Wadhwa Member 6 3
Mrs. Sumita Somany Member 6 3

Scope of the Corporate Affairs Committee

The Corporate Affairs Committee's terms of reference
include providing authorisation to the Company's
Executives on account of banking operations, taxation,
corporate and financial management issues and other
incidental matters arising in the Company's day-to-
day operations. The Committee's powers are revised
from time to time by the Board of Directors to facilitate
seamless operations of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

Composition

Ason31March 2024, the CSR Committee comprised of one
Executive Director, one Non-executive Non Independent
Director and two Independent Directors. Mr. Anil Wadhwa,
Independent Director of the Company is Chairman of the
Committee. The quorum of the Committee is either two
members or one-third of the total members, whichever is
greater. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to
the Committee.

Meetings and Attendance

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met four
times on 4 May 2023, 26 October 2023, 23 February 2024
and 29 March 2024. The following table summarises the
attendance details of the Members of Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee:

No. of

. No. of
meetings meetings
held during attended
Name of Members Status the tenure
Mr. Anil Wadhwa Chairman 4 4
Mr. Sandip Somany Member 4 3
Mrs. Sumita Somany Member 4 3
Mr. Rakesh Sarin Member 4 4

Scope of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee

The Committee oversees the activities/functioning in
identifying the area of Corporate Social Responsibility
activities as specified in the Company's CSR Policy in
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accordance with Schedule VII of the Act and execution
of initiative as per pre-defined guidelines. The Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy of the Company is available on
its website www.agigreenpac.com.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Composition

As on 31 March 2024, the Committee comprised of four
members, three of them being Independent Directors and
oneis Non-Executive Non-Independent Director. Mr. Nand
Gopal Khaitan, Independent Director of the Company,
is the Chairman of the Committee. The quorum for a
meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
is either two members or one third of the members of
the committee, whichever is greater, including at least
one Independent Director in attendance. The Company
Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee.

Meetings and Attendance

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met three
times on 4 May 2023, 25 July 2023 and 6 February 2024. The
following table summarises the attendance details of the
Members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

No. of No. of
meetings meet.ings
held during ttended
Name of Members Status the tenure attende
Mr. N. G. Khaitan Chairman 3 3
Mrs. Sumita Somany Member 3 2
Mr. V.K. Bhandari Member 3 3
Mr. Rakesh Sarin Member 3 3

Terms of Reference

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is
empowered to review and recommend to the Board
of Directors, remuneration and commission of the
Company's Directors with the guidelines laid down
under the statute. The scope of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee is as follows:

(a)

formulating criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of Directors;

- Foreveryappointment of anindependent director,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
evaluates the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience on the Board and on the basis of
such evaluation, prepare a description of the
role and capabilities required of an independent
director. The person recommended to the Board
for appointment as an independent director shall
have the capabilities identified in such description.
Forthe purpose of identifying suitable candidates,
the Committee may:

a. use the services of an external agencies,
if required;

Corporate Overview
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b. consider candidates from a wide range
of backgrounds, having due regard to
diversity; and

c. consider the time commitments of

the candidates.

identifying and recommending individuals who are
qualified to become Directors, and who may be
appointed as Senior Management in accordance with
the criteria laid down;

assisting the management of the Company
in formulating and periodically reviewing the
familiarization programs for independent directors,
as may be required;

formulating criteria for evaluation of Independent
Directors and the Board;

specifying the manner for effective evaluation of
performance of Board, its Committees and individual
directors to be carried out either by the Board, by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or
by an independent external agency and review its
implementation and compliance;

recommending to the Board a policy, relating to
the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Senior Management, and while
formulating such policy ensuring that (i) the level
and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Directors, of
the quality required to run the Company successfully;
(i) the relationship of remuneration to performance
is clear and meets the appropriate performance
benchmarks; and (iii) remuneration to Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
involves a balance between the fixed and incentive
pay reflecting short and long term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the Company
and its goals;

devising a policy on diversity of the Board;

recommending to the Board the re-appointment
and removal of any individuals holding the office
of a Director, Key Managerial Personnel or Senior
Management, subject to the provision of the law and
their service contract;

determining whether the relevant Director has the
requisite qualifications for practice of a profession in
terms of section 197 of the Companies Act in relation
to payment of remuneration for services rendered by
such Director;

undertaking such other functions as may be
determined by the Board or required under
the provisions of the Companies Act or the
Listing Regulations;
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undertaking such other actions as may be necessary
orappropriate for performance of the aforementioned
functions; and

() recommending to the board, all remuneration, in
whatever form, payable to Senior Management.

Details of Remuneration of Directors

The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the
company is available on the Company’'s website
www.agigreenpac.com.

The table below provides the details of the remuneration paid to the Directors during the financial year 2023-24.

Basic &

Amount (in %)

Commission

Contribution Sitting

Name of Directors Allowances Perauisites (foth:)‘ZeZ):;;; to PF Fee Tota
Mr. Sandip Somany 5,06,80,000 - 9,65,96,027 55,77,600 15,28,53,627
Mrs. Sumita Somany - - 20,00,000 - 3,30,000 23,30,000
Mr. V. K. Bhandari - - 20,00,000 - 7,15,000 27,15,000
Mr. N. G. Khaitan - - 20,00,000 - 7,40,000 27,40,000
Mr. G. L. Sultania - - 20,00,000 - 3,60,000 23,60,000
Mr. Rakesh Sarin - - 20,00,000 7,90,000 27,90,000
Mr. Anil Wadhwa - - 20,00,000 - 6,25,000 26,25,000
Ms. Himalyani Gupta - - 20,00,000 5,75,000 25,75,000
Total 5,06,80,000 - 11,05,96,027 55,77,600 41,35,000 17,09,88,627

The Company has not issued any stock option to its

directors/employees.

Directors with materially significant, pecuniary or
business relationship with the Company.

The transactions with related parties are furnished in
note no. 55 of financial statements, as stipulated under
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24. Apart from related
party transactions furnished in note no. 55, there are no
transactions of material nature with Directors or their
relatives and others, which may have potential conflict
with the Company'’s interest. The Register of Contracts
required to be maintained under Section 189(1) and Rule
16(1) of the Act, containing the details of the contracts, in
which the Directors are concerned or interested, is placed
at the meeting of the Board of Directors for their approval
and noting, on a periodical basis.

During the year, no pecuniary or business relationship
existed between the Non-executive and Independent
Directors and the Company.

With the applicability of the Act and Listing Regulations,
transactions attracting provisions of Section 188 which are
in the ordinary course of business and are at arm’s length
have been entered into after being reviewed, scrutinized
and approved by the Audit Committee and with approval
of the Board.

No transactions which are not in ordinary course of
business and are not at arm’s length have been entered
into with any related party.

The Related Party Transactions Policy of the Company is
available on the Company's website www.agigreenpac.
com.

Stakeholders Relationship (Shareholders'/
Investors’ Grievance) Committee

Composition

As on 31 March 2024, the Committee comprised of four
members, three of them being Independent Directors
and one Non-executive Non-Independent Director. The
Chairman of the Committee is Mr. N. G. Khaitan. The
quorum of the Committee is either two members or
one-third of the total members, whichever is greater.
Mr. Ompal, Company Secretary of the Company acts as
the Secretary to the Committee and is also the Company's
Compliance Officer.

Meetings and Attendance

Four meetings of the Committee were held on 4 May
2023, 25 July 2023, 26 October 2023 and 6 February 2024.
The following table summarises the attendance details of
the Members of Stakeholders Relationship (Shareholders//
Investors’ Grievance) Committee:

No. of
meetings Nto of
held during mtt-:e ':g:
Name of Members Status the tenure attende
Mr. N. G. Khaitan Chairman 4 4
Mr. V. K. Bhandari Member 4 4
Mr. G. L. Sultania Member 4 4
Ms. Himalyani Gupta Member 4 4
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Scope of Stakeholders Relationship (Shareholders'/
Investors’ Grievance) Committee

+ To resolve the grievances of the security holders of the
Company including complaints related to transmission
of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of
declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificate/
Letter of Confirmation, general meetings etc.

« To review measures taken for effective exercise of
voting rights by shareholders.

- To review adherence to the service standards adopted
by the Company in respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

+ To review various measures and initiatives taken by
the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend
warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholders of the Company.

During the year, 1 (One) complaint was received and duly
resolved by the Company.

Share Transfer Committee

Composition

The Committee comprises of three members. The
Chairman of the Committee is Mr. G. L. Sultania, who is a
Non-executive Non-Independent Director, and the other
two members are the Company'’s Executives.

Meetings and Attendance

The Committee conducts monthly meetings for redressal
of various shareholders’ requests including but not limited
to approval for transmission/transposition, if any, of shares
lodged with the Company, issuance of duplicate share
certificates/Letter of Confirmation, dematerialisation etc.
As on 31 March 2024, no request for such transmission
of shares was pending. The Committee met 12 (twelve)
times during the year under review and all the members
were present at the meetings.

Scope of the Share Transfer Committee

The Board entrusts the Share Transfer Committee with
the powers related to transmissions, consolidation,
splitting and issue of Letter of Confirmation in lieu of share
certificates, in exchange of sub-divided/consolidated and
others and overseeing the performance of the Company's
appointed Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

Risk Management Committee

Composition

The Committee comprises of four members, three
of them being members of the Board, including two
Independent Directors and one Executive Director. The
remaining member of the Committee is a senior executive
of the Company. Mr. Sandip Somany, Chairman and
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Managing Director of the Company, is Chairman of the
Committee. The quorum of the Committee is either two
members or one-third of the total members, whichever
is greater, including at least one member of the Board of
Directors. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary
to the Committee.

Meetings and Attendance

The Risk Management Committee met two times on
26 April 2023 and 17 October 2023. The following table
summarises the attendance details of the Members of
Risk Management Committee:

No. of No. of
meetings meet.ings
held during ttended
Name of Members Status the tenure attende
Mr. Sandip Somany Chairman 2 2
Mr. N. G. Khaitan Member 2 2
Mr. Rakesh Sarin Member 2 2
Mr. Sandeep Sikka Member 2 2

Scope of the Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee shall have powers to
seek information from any employee, obtain outside legal
or other professional advice and secure attendance of
outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.

Terms of Reference

To formulate a detailed risk management policy that
shall include:

a. a framework for identification of internal and
external risks specifically faced by the Company,
in particular including financial, operational,
sectoral, sustainability  (particularly, ESG
related risks), information, cybersecurity risks
or any other risk as may be determined by
the Committee;

b. measures for risk mitigation including systems
and processes for internal control of identified
risks; and

c. business continuity plan.

- To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes
and systems are in place to monitor and evaluate risks
associated with the business of the Company;

« To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk
management policy, including evaluating the adequacy
of risk management systems;

- To periodically review the risk management policy, at
least once in two years, including by considering the
changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;

+ To keep the board of directors informed about nature
and content of its discussions, recommendations and
actions to be taken;
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« The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration
of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) shall be subject to
review by the Risk Management Committee;

C. Other Meeting

Independent Directors Meeting

During the year under review, the Independent Directors
met on 6 February 2024 inter-alia, to discuss:

« The Risk Management Committee shall coordinate
its activities with other committees, in instances
where there is any overlap with activities of such
committees, as per the framework laid down by the
Board of Directors;

Evaluation of  the Non-

Independent Directors;

performance  of

Evaluation of the Board of Directors as a whole;
« Monitoring and Reviewing the Risk Management

Plan; and Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the

Company, taking into account the view of the Executive

+ Such other function(s) as the board of directors may and Non-executive Directors: and

deem fit.
The quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of

information between the Company's Management and
the Board, that is necessary for the Board to effectively
and reasonably perform their duties.

Senior Management

In terms of Clause 5B of Schedule V of Listing Regulations, the particulars of Senior Management as on 31 March 2024
are provided below:

S.
No. Name

Designation

Department

Key Managerial Personnel

1. Mr. Rajesh Khosla* Chief Executive Officer General Administration
2. Mr. Shashvat Somany Vice President Strategy

3. Mr. Govind Jee Rai Sr. Vice President Human Resource

4. Mr. Manoj Kumar Goel Chief Executive Officer General Administration
5. Mr. Kulur Satish Shetty President General Administration
6. Mr. Ashoka Rao Manikala President General Administration
7. Mr. Deepak Bansal Vice President Internal Audit

8.  Mr. Om Prakash Pandey Chief Financial Officer Finance

9. Mr. Pulkit Bhasin** Company Secretary Legal & Secretarial

10.  Mr. Ompal** Company Secretary Legal & Secretarial

* The Board of Directors, in its meeting held on 2 May 2024, re-designated Mr. Rajesh Khosla from President and CEO of Packaging Products
Division of the Company to Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

** Mr. Pulkit Bhasin resigned as Company Secretary of the Company with effect from close of business hours of 10 November 2023 and
Mr. Ompal was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company with effect from é February 2024.

D. General Body Meetings

Annual General Meeting

The last three Annual General Meetings were held as under:

Financial Year Date Time Venue
2022-23 31 August 2023 12:30 p.m.
2021-22 22 September 2022 2:00p.m Through Video Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means
Deemed Venue for the meeting:
Registered Office - 2, Red Cross Place, Kolkata - 700 001
2020-21 24 September 2021 11.00 a.m.
Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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Two Special Resolutions were passed at the Annual General Meetings held during the last three

financial years:

No. of Special
Date of Annual General Meeting Resolution passed Particulars
31 August 2023 - -
22 September 2022 - -
24 September 2021 2 1. Re-appointment of Mr. Sandip Somany as Vice-Chairman and

Managing Director and remuneration payable thereof

Approval for remuneration by way of commission to the Directors
(other than Managing Directors)

Extra Ordinary General Meeting

During the financial year 2023-24, no Extra Ordinary General Meeting was held.

Postal Ballot

During the financial year 2023-24, the Company conducted Postal Ballot once, the results of which were declared on 27
June 2023. The following two resolutions were passed by the above mentioned Postal Ballot:

Votes cast in favour

Votes cast against

S. Date of declaration of
No. Special Resolutions No. of votes % No. of votes % Results
1. Increase in Borrowing Powers of the Board 43,212,927 99.90 1,580 0.10 27 June 2023
of Directors
2. Creation of charges on Movable and 43,213,117 99.91 1,375 0.09 27 June 2023

Immovable Properties u/s 180(1)(a) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

No special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

Procedure for Postal Ballot

In compliance with Regulation 44 of the Listing Regulations
and Sections 108, 110 and other applicable provisions of
the Act read with related rules, the Company engaged
the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited
(CDSL) for the purpose of providing remote e-voting
facility to all its Members.

The Notice was sent only through email to all the
Members who had registered their email addresses with
the Company or depository/depository participants and
the physical Notice (along with postal ballot form) and
pre-paid business envelope through post is not sent to
the Members for the postal ballot pursuant to the MCA
General Circulars Nos. 14/2020 dated 8 April 2020, 17/2020
dated 13 April 2020, 22/2020 dated 15 June 2020, 33/2020
dated 28 September 2020, 39/2020 dated 31 December
2020, 02/2021 dated 13 January 2021, 10/2021 dated 23
June 2021, 20/2021 dated 8 December 2021, 3/2022 dated
5 May 2022 and 11/2022 dated 28 December 2022 as
applicable. The communication of assent/dissent of the
Members took place through the remote e-voting system.

The Company also places the Notice of the postal ballot
on its website and publishes the same in the newspapers
declaring the details of completion of dispatch through

e-mail and other requirements as mandated under the Act
and applicable rules.

Voting rights are reckoned on the paid-up value of the
shares registered in the name of the Members as on the
cut-off date. Members are requested to vote before the
close of business hours on the last date of e-voting.

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting
held on 4 May 2023 had appointed Mr. Pravin Kumar
Drolia, Company Secretary in Practice, Kolkata (FCS No.:
2366, CP No.: 1362) as the Scrutinizer for conducting the
Postal Ballot and ensuring fairness and transparency in
e-voting process.

After completion of the scrutiny, the Scrutinizer submitted
his report and the consolidated results of the votes cast
through remote e-voting. Thereafter, Mr. Girdhari Lal
Sultania, Director of the Company, duly authorized by the
Chairman and Managing Director, announced the results
of the postal ballot resolutions. The results of postal
ballot are also displayed on the website of the Company
i.e. www.agigreenpac.com, besides being communicated
to the stock exchanges. The deemed date of passing the
resolution(s) is the last date of remote e-voting i.e. 26
June 2023.
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E. Disclosures

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

The Company followed the guidelines of Accounting
Standards laid down by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) in preparation of its
financial statements.

Risk Management

The Company hasaRiskManagementCommitteetoframe,
implement and monitor the risk management plan for the
Company. The Committee is responsible for monitoring
and reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring
its effectiveness. The Audit Committee has additional
oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. The
major risks identified by the businesses and functions are
systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a
continuing basis. The Company has also adopted a Risk
Management Policy which establishes various levels of
accountability and overview within the Company.

Disclosure of Commodity Price Risks and Hedging
Activities

During the year under review, no hedging activities on any
commodity were carried out by the Company. Therefore,
there is no disclosure to offer in terms of SEBI Master
circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/POD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated 11th
July, 2023.

Please refer to Note No. 46 of the Financial Statements,
which form part of the Annual Report.

Strictures/Penalties

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI") issued
an Adjudication Order no. ORDER/BM/RK/2024-25/30315
dated 30t April, 2024 ("Order”), under Section 15-1 of the
SEBI Act, 1992, read with Rule 5 of SEBI (Procedure for
Holding Inquiry and Imposing Penalties) Rules, 1995. This
Order imposes a penalty of ¥ 500,000 (Indian Rupees
Five Lakhs only) on the Company for alleged violation
of provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("LODR Regulations”).
The Company has filed an appeal with the Hon'ble
Securities and Appellate Tribunal ("Hon'ble SAT") against
the aforementioned Order. As on the date of publication
of this Annual Report, the matter was pending before the
Hon'ble SAT for hearing.

Except the above order, there was no strictures/penalties
imposed on the Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or
any statutory authority, or any matter related to capital
markets during the last three years.

Details of utilisation of funds

During the year under review, the Company did not raise
any funds through preferential allotment or qualified
institutions placement as specified under Regulation
32(7A) of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Management

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms
a part of the Annual Report and is in accordance with
the requirements laid down in Regulation 34 of the
Listing Regulations.

No material transaction was entered into by the Company
with the Promoters, Directors and/or the Senior
Management that may have a potential conflict with the
Company's interest.

Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower) Policy

The Company has put in place a mechanism for reporting
illegal, unethical behavior, malpractice, impropriety,
abuse, insider trading or wrongdoing. The Company has a
Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower) Policy under which the
employees are free to report violations of applicable laws
and regulations and the Code of Conduct.

The employees, directors and other stakeholders can
submit Protected Disclosures to Tip-offs Anonymous
Service Provider in the manner laid out in the Vigil
Mechanism (Whistle Blower) Policy, which is available on
the Company's website www.agigreenpac.com. During
the year under review, no employee was denied access to
Audit Committee.

Performance Evaluation

Pursuanttotheprovisionsofthe ActandListingRegulations,
the Board has carried out the annual performance
evaluation of its own performance, the Directors
individually and Chairman as well as the evaluation of the
working of its Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking
into consideration inputs received from the Directors,
covering various aspects of the Board's functioning such
as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its
Committees, Board culture, execution and performance
of specific duties, obligation and governance.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the
performance ofindividual Directorsincluding the Chairman
of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such
as level of engagement and contribution, independence
of judgment, safeguarding the interest of the Company
and its shareholders etc. The performance evaluation of
the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire
Board. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and
the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the
Independent Directors and the Directors expressed their
satisfaction with the evaluation process.

Code of Conduct for the Prevention of Insider
Trading

The Company has in place its Code of Conduct for the
Prevention of Insider Trading, in accordance with the
guidelines specified under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) (Amendment)
Regulations, 2018.
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The Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading
("Code"), inter-alia, prohibits purchase/sale of Company'’s
shares, while in possession of Company’s Unpublished
Price Sensitive Information (“UPSI”) and accordingly
necessary procedures have been laid down for the
Designated Persons and others as prescribed under
the said code for trading in the Company’s securities.
The Code covers Company's obligation to maintain a
structured digital database, mechanism for prevention of
insider trading and handling of UPSI, and the process to
familiarize with the sensitivity of UPSI.

The Company's Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair
Disclosures is available on the Company's website www.
agigreenpac.com.

Subsidiary Companies

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company had
no subsidiary.

The policy on Material Subsidiaries is available
on the Company's website at the link: Policy on
Material Subsidiaries

Details of Material Subsidiaries

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company does not
have any material Subsidiary.

Particulars of Director seeking re-appointment

Pursuant to provisions of the Act, Mrs. Sumita Somany shall
retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

For detailed particulars on the Director seeking re-
appointment, please refer to Notice dated 2 May 2024 of
the 64t Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on
18 September 2024.

Training of Independent Directors

As per Regulation 25(7) of Listing Regulations, the
Company provides suitable training to the Independent
Directors to familiarize them with the Company, theirroles,
rights, responsibilities, nature of the industry in which the
Company operates, the business model of the Company
and other relevant information, if any. The details of such
training imparted are disclosed in the Annual Report.

The Company provides orientation and business overview
to all its new Directors and provides materials and briefing
sessions periodically to all Directors which assist them in
discharging their duties and responsibilities.

The details of programmes conducted for familiarization
of Independent Directors with the Company during the
FY 2023-24, nature of the industry in which the Company
operates, business model of the Company, recent
amendments/notifications etc. and related matters
are put up on the website of the Company at the link:
Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors
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Further, the Company issues a formal letter of
appointment to Independent Directors outlining
their roles, responsibilities, functions and duties as
an Independent Director. The format of the letter of
appointment is available on the Company’s website at the
link: Appointment letter to Independent Directors

Adoption of mandatory and non - mandatory
requirements of Listing Regulations

The Company has complied with all mandatory
requirements of Listing Regulations. The Company has
adopted following non-mandatory requirements of the
Listing Regulations:

Audit Qualification

The Company is in the regime of unqualified
financial statements.

Reporting of Internal Auditor

The Internal Auditor directly reports to the

Audit Committee.

Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice

The certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice,
stating that none of the Director on the Board of Directors
of the Company has been debarred or disqualified from
being appointed or continuing as Director of companies
by the Securities and Exchange Board of India/Ministry
of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority, is
enclosed to this Report.

Deviations, if any, of mandatory recommendations by the
Committees to the Board of Directors.

During the year, there was no instance wherein the
Board of Directors of the Company did not accept any
recommendation of the Committees.

Details of total fees paid to Statutory Auditor

The details of total fees for all services paid by the
Company for the FY 2023-24, to the statutory auditor and
all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the
statutory auditor is a part, are as follows:

(R in lakhs)

S.
No. Nature of Service Amount
1. Audit Fees 10.50
2. Other Services* 3.24
3. Reimbursement of Expenses 1.58
Total 15.32

* Other services include certification which has also been approved
by the Audit Committee as required under Listing Regulations.

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

Thedisclosuresinrelation to Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act,
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2013 are mentioned in the Directors' Report which forms
part of this Annual Report.

Loans and Advances to firms/companies in which
Directors are interested

During the FY 2023-24 the Company has not provided
any loans or advances in the nature of loans to firms/
companies in which Directors are interested.

Disclosure of certain type of agreements binding
listed entities

There is no agreement impacting management or control
of the Company or imposing any restriction or creating
any liability upon the Company as stated under Schedule
lll, Para A, Clause 5A of the Listing Regulations.

F. Means of Communication

Results

The quarterly, half yearly and annual results are submitted
to the Stock Exchange(s) in accordance with Listing
Regulations. Further, the quarterly/half yearly/annual
results in the prescribed format, are published within 48
hoursin prominent daily newspapers, suchas The Financial
Express (English daily) and Ekdin vernacular newspaper.
All vital information of the Company's performance,
including Financial Results, Annual Reports of the last
three years and Shareholding Pattern have been posted
on the Company's website www.agigreenpac.com.

News releases, presentations, among others

Official news releases and official media releases etc. are
displayed on the Company's website www.agigreenpac.
com.

Presentation

The Company makes financial presentations to
institutional investors, mutual funds and others who
have invested or intends to invest in the Company's share
capital and such presentations are available on the website
of the Company.

Website

The Company’s website, www.agigreenpac.com contains
a separate dedicated section ‘Investor Relations’ where
shareholders’ information is available. The Company'’s
Annual Report is also available in a user-friendly and
downloadable form.

Annual Report

The Annual Report containing, inter-alia, Audited Financial
Statements, Directors’' Report, Auditors’' Report, Business
Responsibility and Sustainability Report, if applicable, and
other important information is circulated to members and
others entitled thereto. The Management's Discussion

and Analysis (MD&A) Report forms part of the Annual
Report and is displayed on the Company’s website www.
agigreenpac.com.

NSE Electronic Application Processing System
(NEAPS)

The NEAPS is a web-based application designed by NSE
for Corporates. All periodical compliance filings like
shareholding pattern, corporate governance report,
results and other requirements of Listing Regulations,
media releases, among others are filed electronically on
NEAPS, by the Company.

BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the
‘Listing Centre’)

BSE's Listing Centre is a web-based application designed
for Corporates. All periodical compliance filings like
shareholding pattern, corporate governance report,
results, media releases, among others are also filed
electronically on the Listing Centre by the Company.

SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES)

The investor complaints are processed in a centralised
web-based complaints redress system. The salient
features of this system are: Centralised database of all
complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports (ATRs)
by concerned companies and online viewing by investors
of actions taken on the complaint and its current status.

Dispute Resolution Mechanism (SMART ODR)

In order to strengthen the dispute resolution mechanism
for all disputes between alisted company and/or registrars
& transfer agents and its shareholder(s)/investor(s),
SEBI had issued a Standard Operating Procedure ('SOP’)
vide Circular dated May 30, 2022. As per this Circular,
shareholder(s)/investor(s) can opt for Stock Exchange
Arbitration Mechanism for resolution of their disputes
against the Company or its RTA. Further, SEBI vide Circular
dated July 31, 2023 (updated as on December 20, 2023),
introduced the Online Dispute Resolution (ODR) Portal.
Through this ODR portal, the aggrieved party can initiate
the mechanism, after exercising the primary options to
resolve its issue, directly with the Company and through
the SEBI Complaint Redress System (SCORES) platform.
The Company has complied with the above circulars and
the same are available at the website of the Company:
https://agigreenpac.com.

Designated Exclusive email-id

The Company has designated the email-id "hsilinvestors@
hsilgroup.com” exclusively for investor servicing.
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G. ShareholderS Information

Company Registration Details

The Company is registered with the Registrar of
Companies, in the State of West Bengal, India. The
Corporate ldentification Number (CIN) allotted to the
Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
is L51433WB1960PLC024539.

Contact Information

Registered Office

2, Red Cross Place

Kolkata - 700 001, West Bengal, India
Phone: +91 - 33 -2248 7407/5668
email: hsilinvestors@hsilgroup.com

Corporate Office

301-302, Park Centra Building
Sector-30, National Highway - 8
Gurugram - 122001, Haryana, India
Phone: +91-124-477 9200

Email: ompal.prajapati@hindware.com

Plant locations

Location Address

Telangana « Glass Factory Road, Off Motinagar, P.B No. 1930,
Sanathnagar, P.O. Hyderabad - 500 018

« Glass Factory Road, Thukkapur Road, Bhongir,
District Nalgonda - 508116

« Survey No.208 to 218, Sitarampur, Patancheru

(Mandal) Sangareddy Dist., Isnapur-502 307

« KIADB Industrial Area, Lakamanhalli,
Dharwad - 580004

+ Khasra No.122, Pachwadoon, Mauja Central
Hope Town, Pargana, Selaqui, Dehradun-248011

Karnataka

Uttarakhand

Company Secretary
Mr. Ompall

Annual General Meeting

The 64t Annual General Meeting is scheduled to be held
on Wednesday, 18 September 2024 at 12:30 P.M. (IST)
through Video Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means.
The deemed venue for the meeting is 2, Red Cross Place
Kolkata- 700 00T1.

Financial Calendar

The Company follows April to March as its financial year.
The results for every quarter, beginning from April, are
declared within 45 days of the end of quarter, except
for the last quarter, which are submitted, along with the
annual audited results within 60 days of the end of the last
quarter, as permitted under the Listing Regulations.

Date of Book Closure

Thursday, 12 September 2024 to Wednesday 18 September
2024 (both days inclusive)

Corporate Overview Statutory Reports  Financial Statements

Dividend Payment Date

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 2 May 2024
recommended Dividend @ 300% i.e. X 6 (Rupees Six) per
equity share of ¥ 2 each for the financial year 2023-2024.
subject to shareholders’ approval at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting to be held on 18 September 2024 and
the same will be credited/dispatched on or before 25
September 2024 to the shareholders entitled for the same.

Listing on Stock Exchanges

The Stock Exchanges, at which the Company’'s equity
shares are listed, and the respective stock codes are:

National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE):
Exchange Plaza, 5t Floor,

Plot No. C-1, Block-G,

Bandra-Kurla Complex,

Mumbai-400051

Maharashtra, India

Stock code: AGI

BSE Ltd. (BSE):

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001
Maharashtra, India

Stock code: 500187

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN) of the
Company's equity shares, having face value of X 2 each, is
INE 415A 01038.

Listing fees for the financial year 2024-25 have been paid
to the Stock Exchanges.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

M/s. Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited is the
Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) for
its equity shares. The contact details of RTA are:

Maheshwari Datamatics Private Limited

23, R. N. Mukherjee Road, 5t" Floor, Kolkata -700 001
Phone: +91-33- 2243 5029/2248 2248

Email: mdpldc@yahoo.com

Share Transfer System

The Company has constituted a Share Transfer
Committee to consider and approve applications, if
any, for re-materialisation/transmission/transposition/
internal transfer/issuance of duplicate certificates and
Letter of Confirmation in lieu thereof for physical shares,
if any received.

Market Price Data

Monthly stock market data of the Company’s high-and-
low prices of equity shares during the FY 2023-24 and
their performance, in comparison with the broad-based
index, comprise:
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Monthly Stock Market Data

Monthly NSE and BSE prices of equity shares

Month NSE High Price NSE Low Price BSE High Price BSE Low Price
Apr-23 421.00 324.95 421.15 324.60
May-23 623.95 399.05 623.50 398.80
Jun-23 647.75 562.75 647.95 562.30
Jul-23 695.00 560.05 695.45 559.55
Aug-23 757.85 621.05 756.45 618.15
Sep-23 942.90 659.55 942.00 660.60
Oct-23 1,089.00 875.80 1,088.00 870.40
Nov-23 1,066.55 875.00 1,066.40 875.00
Dec-23 983.10 800.00 980.95 795.50
Jan-24 908.00 757.35 909.00 750.95
Feb-24 868.55 756.50 867.95 760.00
Mar-24 902.70 696.35 900.00 698.80
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< 2 2 3 E 8 3 2 8 L g s
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Monthly closing price of equity shares on NSE and NSE Nifty

Month NSE NSE Nifty
Apr-23 413.70 18,065.00
May-23 572.00 18,534.40
Jun-23 577.30 19,189.05
Jul-23 617.15 19,753.80
Aug-23 736.25 19,253.80
Sep-23 895.85 19,638.30
Oct-23 884.80 19,079.60
Nov-23 956.85 20,133.15
Dec-23 826.10 21,731.40
Jan-24 798.15 21,725.70
Feb-24 819.45 21,982.80
Mar-24 726.50 22,326.90
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Distribution of Shareholding as on 31 March 2024
Shareholders Shares
Number of Shares held Number % of Total Number % of Total
Upto 500 63356 94.07 3852377 5.96
501-1,000 2123 3.16 1646184 2.55
1,001-2,000 922 1.37 1370219 2.1
2,001-3,000 300 0.45 769015 1.19
3,001-4,000 149 0.22 524476 0.81
4,001-5,000 99 0.14 459811 0.71
5,001-10,000 203 0.30 1488766 2.30
10,007 and above 191 0.29 54586533 84.37
Total 67343 100.00 64697381 100.00
Category of Shareholders as on 31 March 2024
No. of Shares of
Category 72 each % of Total
Promoter 38972819 60.24
Mutual Fund/UTI 37952 0.06
Alternative Investment Funds 678997 1.05
Foreign Portfolio Investors 4800447 7.42
Financial Institutions/Banks 15986 0.02
Insurance Companies 40500 0.06
Foreign Institutional Investors 0 0.00
Foreign National 207 0.00
Domestic Companies/Bodies Corporate 1375784 213
Non-Resident Individual 477416 0.74
Others 18297273 28.28
Total 64697381 100.00
Dematerialization of Shares
Shares of ¥ 2 each
Particulars of Shares Number of shares % of Total
Dematerialized Form
National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) 58930683 91.09
Central Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) 5325444 8.23
Physical Form 441254 0.68
Total 64697381 100.00

Annual Report 2023-24

73



74

AGI Greenpac Limited

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments.

Disclosure in respect of equity shares transferred in the Company’s unclaimed suspense account:

No. of
Details Shareholders No. of Shares
Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying NIL NIL
as on 01 April 2023
Shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares from suspense account NIL NIL
during the year
Shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the suspense account during the year NIL NIL
Shareholders whose shares are transferred to the demat account of the IEPF Authority as per 54 14,890
Section 124 of the Act
Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying 1 700

as on 31 March 2024

The voting rights on the shares outstanding in the suspense account as on 31 March 2024 shall remain frozen till the
rightful owner of such shares claims the shares.

Credit Ratings

The Company has obtained the following credit ratings during the financial year:

S.

No. Name of Rating Agency Instrument Type Rating Rating Action Revision, if any

1. CARE Ratings Limited Long Term Bank CARE A+ (RWD) Placed on rating watch with ~ Changed from CARE A+
Facilities Developing implications (RWN) to CARE A+ (RWD)
Short Term Bank CARE AT+ (RWD)  Placed on rating watch with ~ Changed from CARE A1+
Facilities Developing implications (RWN) to CARE AT+ (RWD)

H. Code of Conduct

The Company's Board of Directors laid down and adopted a Code of Conduct under Corporate Governance for all the
Directors and the Senior Management Personnel of your Company. The said Code of Conduct has also been posted on
the Company’s website www.agigreenpac.com.The Board members and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed
their compliance with the Code of Conduct for the FY 2023-24.

Adeclaration signed by the Company’s Chairman and Managing Director to this effectis enclosed at the end of thisreport.

I. CEO and CFO Certification

A Certificate, as required under Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations, duly signed by the Chairman and Managing
Director and Chief Financial Officer, was placed before the Board, and the same is enclosed in this report and forms part
of the Annual Report.

J. Certification by Secretarial Auditors

As required under Listing Regulations, M/s. DMK Associates, Company Secretaries, the Company’s Secretarial Auditors,
have verified the compliances of the Corporate Governance by the Company. We have obtained a Certificate affirming
the compliance from M/s. DMK Associates, Company Secretaries, and the same is enclosed to this Report and forms a
part of the Annual Report.

Declaration by Chairman and Managing Director under Listing Regulations regarding adherence to the Code
of Conduct

In accordance with Listing Regulations, | hereby confirm that all the Directors and the Senior Management Personnel
have affirmed compliance with their respective code of conduct, as applicable to them, for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Place: Gurugram Sandip Somany
Date: 2 May 2024 Chairman and Managing Director
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Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i)of the SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To

The Members of

AGI Greenpac Limited

CIN: L51433WB1960PLC024539
(Formerly known as HSIL Limited)
2 Red Cross Place,

Kolkata 700001

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of AGI
Greenpac Limited (Formerly Known as HSIL Limited) having registered office at 2, Red Cross Place, Kolkata 700001
(hereinafterreferredtoas "the Company"’), produced before us by the Company forthe purpose of issuing this Certificate,
in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Director Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the
Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for
the Financial year ended on 31 March, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other
Statutory Authority.

:lrc;. Name of Director DIN Date of Appointment
1 Sandip Somany 00053597 12/09/1995
2 Sumita Somany 00133612 29/05/2014
3 Girdhari Lal Sultania 00060931 09/09/2006
4 Vijay Kumar Bhandari 00052716 24/07/2004
5 Nand Gopal Khaitan 00020588 27/09/1996
6 Rakesh Sarin 02082150 18/03/2020
7 Himalyani Gupta 00607140 18/03/2020
8  AnilWadhwa 08074310 18/03/2020

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment /continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For DMK Associates
Company Secretaries
Date: 02 May 2024
Place: New Delhi
UDIN : FO05480F000291139
Monika Kohli
B.Com (H), FCS, LL.B., IP
Partner
FCS 5480
C.P. 4936
Peer Review No. 779/2020
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To

CEO/CFO Certification

The Board of Directors
We hereby certify that:

a)

We have reviewed financial statements and cash flow statement of AGI Greenpac Limited (Formerly known as HSIL
Limited) (‘the Company’) for the year ended 31 March 2024 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i.  These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

i. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the above
said period which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

We accept the responsibility of establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and
we have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal
controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
i.  significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the above said period;

ii. significant changesin accounting policies during the above said period and that the same have been disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements; and

iii. instances of significant fraud, of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company's internal control system over
financial reporting.

Place: Gurugram Sandip Somany O.P. Pandey
Date: 2 May 2024 Chairman and Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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Certificate on Corporate Governance

To

The Members of

AGI Greenpac Limited

(Formerly known as HSIL Limited)

1. We have examined the compliance of the conditions of corporate governance by AGI Greenpac Limited (Formerly
known as HSIL Limited) (“the Company”) for the year ended 31 March, 2024 as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27,
clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paragraphs C and D of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

Management'’s Responsibility

2. The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
This responsibility includes the designing, implementing and operating effectiveness of internal control to ensure
compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

Our Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression
of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

4.  We have examined the relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the purposes of providing
reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

Opinion

5. Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided
to us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and
para C and D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31 March, 2024.

6. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For DMK Associates
Company Secretaries
Date: 02 May 2024
Place: New Delhi
UDIN: FO05480F000291095
CS Monika Kohli
Partner
FCS 5480
COP No. 4936
Peer Review No. 779/2020
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Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report

Section A: General Disclosures

Details of the listed entity

S.
No. Particulars Details
1.  Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Listed Entity L51433WB1960PLC024539
2. Name of the Listed Entity AGI Greenpac Limited (the Company)
3. Year of incorporation 1960
4. Registered office address 2, Red Cross Place, Kolkata 700001, West Bengal
5. Corporate address 301-302, Ill Floor, Park Centra, Sector 30, N.H. 8,
Gurugram, Haryana 122001
6. Email hsilinvestors@hsilgroup.com
7. Telephone +91 332248 7407/5668
8. Website www.agigreenpac.com
9. Financial year for which reporting is being done FY 2023-24
10. Name of the Stock Exchange(s) where shares are listed BSE Limited, National Stock Exchange of India
Limited
11. Paid-up capital 1,293.99 lakh
12. Name and contact details (telephone, e-mail address) of the person who  Mr. Sandip Somany
may be contacted in case of any queries on the BRSR report Chairman and Managing Director
+91 3322487407
13. Reporting boundary - Are the disclosures under this report made on a Standalone
standalone basis (i.e., only for the entity) or on a consolidated basis (i.e.,
for the entity and all the entities which form a part of its consolidated
financial statements, taken together)
14. Name of Assurance provider NA
15. Type of Assurance obtained NA

Il. Products/ Services

16. Details of business activities (accounting for 90% of the Turnover):

S. Description of Main Percentage of
No. Activity Description of Business Activity Turnover of the entity
1. Packaging Products  Container Glass bottles, PET bottles and Security Caps and Closures 99%

17. Products/Services sold by the entity (accounting for 90% of the entity’s Turnover):

S. Percentage of total
No. Product/Service NIC Code Turnover contributed
1. Glass Containers 23103 88%

2. PET bottles and Caps and Closures 22203 1%

lll. Operations

18. Number of locations where plants and/or operations/offices of the entity are situated:

Location Number of plants Number of offices Total
National 7 5 12
International Nil Nil Nil

19. Markets served by the entity:

a. Number of locations

Locations Number
National (No. of States) 36 (including Union Territories)
International (No. of Countries) 17

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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What is the contribution of exports as a percentage of the total turnover of the entity? 1.67%
A brief on types of customers

Over the years, the Company has grown in technical knowledge and experience to cater to various industry needs
across glass containers, specialty glass, pet bottles, caps, and closures. Today, AGI Greenpac's customers are
household names across sectors ranging from alcoholic beverages, pharmaceuticals, food, soft drinks, cosmetics,

v.

20.

21.

22.

and perfumes.

Employees

Details as at the end of Financial Year:

Employees and workers (including differently abled):

S. Total (A) Male Female
No. Particulars No. (B) % (B/ A) No. (C) % (C/A)
Employees
1. Permanent (D) 1,181 1,162 98.39% 19 1.60%
Other than Permanent (E) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total employees (D + E) 1,181 1,162 98.39% 19 1.60%
Workers
4. Permanent (F) 207 207 100% Nil Nil
5. Other than Permanent (G) 3,067 2,614 85.23% 453 14.77%
6. Total workers (F + G) 3,274 2,821 86.16% 453 13.83%
Differently abled employees and workers:
S. Total (A) Male Female
No. Particulars No. (B) % (B/A) No. (C) % (C/A)
Differently abled Employees
1.  Permanent (D) 1 1 100% Nil 0%
Other than Permanent (E) Nil Nil 0% Nil 0%
Total employees (D +E) 1 1 100% Nil 0%
Differently abled Workers
4. Permanent (F) Nil Nil 0% Nil 0%
Other than permanent (G) 1 1 100% Nil 0%
6.  Total workers (F + G) 1 1 100% Nil 0%
Participation/Inclusion/Representation of women
No. and percentage of Females
Total (A)
No. (B) % (B/A)
Board of Directors 8 2 25%
Key Management Personnel 3 Nil 0%

Turnover rate for permanent employees and workers

Turnover rate of current

Turnover rate of previous

Turnover rate of the year prior to the

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 previous FY 2021-22
Male Female Total Male Female Total Male Female Total

Permanent 18%  21.05% 18.07% 20.96% 28.57% 21.04% 19.45% 66.67% 19.93%

Employees

Permanent 22.3% Nil 22.3% 12.79% Nil 12.79% 24.47% 24.47%

Workers
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V. Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies (including joint ventures)

23. Names of holding/subsidiary/associate companies/joint ventures

Name of the holding/
S. subsidiary/associate
No. companies/joint ventures (A)

Indicate whether holding/
subsidiary/ associate/joint
venture

Percentage of shares held by

listed entity

Does the entity indicated at
column A, participate in the

Business Responsibility initiatives

of the listed entity? (Yes/No)

1. Somany Impresa Limited

Holding Company

50.8

No

VI. CSR Details
24. (i) Whether CSRis applicable as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013: Yes

(ii) Turnover (in%): 2,420.87 Crores

(iii) Net worth (in %): 1,814.61 Crores

VII. Transparency and Disclosures Compliances

25. Complaints/Grievances on any of the principles (Principles 1 to 9) under the National Guidelines on
Responsible Business Conduct:

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Number of Number of
Number of complaints Numberof complaints
Stakeholder Grievance Redressal complaint pending Remark complaint pending Remark
group from Mechanism in Place (Yes/No) (If yes, filed during resolution at emarks filed during resolution at emarks
whom complaint then provide weblink for grievance theyear close of the theyear close of the
is received redress policy) year year
Communities  Yes, The Company has effective Nil Nil Nil Nil
Investors mechanism in place to ensure
(Other than irglrgpt redres,s‘?/',ofl %'e\ﬁ”c,es' Nil Nil Nil Nil
shareholders) Greenpac’s Vigil Mechanism
provides a robust mechanism
Shareholders  to the Company'’s stakeholders 1 Nil 6 Nil
Emplovees including Employees, Directors, _ _ ) ]
andpwg/rkers Contractual Employees, Trainees, Nil Nil Nil Nil
Vendors, Suppliers, and other : : Nil : : Nil
Customers persons associated with the Nil Nil Nil Nil
Value Chain Company for reporting concerns. ) ) ) )
Partners This ensure that any deviations Nil Nil Nil Nil
from the Company's Code of Ni : : :
il Nil Nil Nil
Othe;s (Please  5nduct and values are dealt with
specify) in a fair and unbiased manner.
Weblink provided here Whistle-
blower Policy.
Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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26. Overview of the entity’s material responsible business conduct issues:

Financial Statements

Please indicate material responsible business conduct and sustainability issues pertaining to environmental and social
matters that present a risk or an opportunity to your business, rationale for identifying the same, approach to adapt or
mitigate the risk along-with its financial implications, as per the following format.

Indicate
whether risk
Material Issue

or opportunity Rationale for identifying the

risk/opportunity

In case of risk, approach to adapt or
mitigate

Financial
implications of the
risk or opportunity
(Indicate positive
or negative
implications)

The glass industry is part of the
energy-intensive industry posing

a major challenge to fulfil the CO2
reduction targets of the Paris Climate
Agreement. Effective GHG emission
monitoring and energy management
is essential to address the regulatory,
technological, reputation and supply
chain risks arising out of carbon
emissions and further address client
requirements on emissions.

Few identified risks are:

v' Compliance with energy savings
and targets under PAT scheme

v' Compliance with stringent
carbon regulations can lead to
higher operational costs due to
the need for advanced emission
control technologies and cleaner
energy sources.

v" Risks of increase in business
expenses due to the exploitation
and non-use of fossil fuel
subsidies

v' Therisk related to non-
conformance with the upcoming
carbon pricing mechanism

v' ESG performance rating risk for
a company'’s greenhouse gas
emissions

v Suppliers facing increased costs
due to carbon pricing, which
can be passed down to glass
manufacturers.

AGI Greenpac is continuously
increasing the share of renewable
resources by reducing the reliance on
fossil fuels. We have installed solar
power plants and we have started
replacing diesel forklifts with electrical
forklifts. We have started using IE3,
IE4 energy efficient motors in the
plant along with star rated equipment
to increase energy efficiency.

We have installed electrostatic
precipitator to remove Sox and
particulate matter. Additionally, we
are investing in R&D to manufacture
innovative glass that could result

in less GHG emissions. By setting
internal target to increase the cullet
utilisation to 50% by 2027 and reduce
product returns by 20% by 2025, we
are aiming to reduce our share to
GHG emissions.

Positive: Cost
Optimisation
Negative:
Investment in
energy-efficient
technology.
Reputational
damage in

the event of
failing to meet
greenhouse
gas reduction
commitments

S. No. identified (R/0)

1. GHG Risk and
Emissions opportunity
and Energy
Management

2. Water Risk and
Management opportunity

Water scarcity poses a significant
business continuity risk, as most
of our activities require substantial
water usage.

The production of glass packaging
involves significant use of water,
especially in cooling processes,
cleaning of raw materials, and
forming operations. Water shortages
can disrupt these processes, leading
to production delays and increased
costs. Moreover, contaminated
water can affect the quality of the
glass produced. Impurities in water
used during manufacturing can

lead to defects in the glass, such as
bubbles or inconsistencies in the
material.

Meeting stringent effluent standards
requires investment in advanced
water treatment technologies,
which can increase operational
costs.

AGI Greenpac has implemented
rainwater harvesting, zero liquid
discharge policies, and reuse 50%
of water through STPs and RO
systems. Innovations like the dry
optical cullet sorter and repurposing
RO reject water have significantly
reduced our freshwater consumption.
We rigorously monitor water use,
maintain detailed SOPs, and adopt
a uniform discharge practice across
all units. By setting internal targets
and activating an Internal Water
Price (IWP), we continuously strive
to reduce water consumption and
achieve water positivity. We have set
the target to reduce freshwater and
groundwater consumption by 10%
by 2026 and have initiated water
replenishment through the creation
of ponds and artificial lakes.

Positive: Water
conservation
leads to cost
optimisation
Negative: Water
shortages
could disrupt
our business
operations

and resultin
significant
financial losses
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Material Issue

Indicate
whether risk

or opportunity Rationale for identifying the

In case of risk, approach to adapt or

Financial
implications of the
risk or opportunity
(Indicate positive
or negative

S.No. identified (R/0O) risk/opportunity mitigate implications)

3. Waste Risk and Reusing waste glass and AGI Greenpac has implemented Positive: Cost
Management opportunity  incorporating recycled cullet can a dedicated sustainable waste optimisation

promote resource efficiency, management system, reusing 100%  through reuse
potentially lower production of production waste and recycling and recycling
costs and enhancing the overall about 2.0 lakh tonnes of cullet Negative:
profitability of AGI's glass annually. We ensure high quality Regulatory
manufacturing processes. cullet through increased recycled fines, related

glass utilization. We responsibly health issues,

disposg of hazardous waste through 44 potential

authorized vendors and reuse waste  optational

from the ESP plant. Additionally, we damage

aim for zero waste to landfill and

have implemented comprehensive

compliance measures, including

regular reviews by a Bio-Medical

Waste (BMW) committee, to enhance

our waste management practices.

Further, we aim to achieve 100%

recyclable packaging by 2030 and

increase recyclable cullet utilisation to

50% by 2027.

4. Diversity, Risk and Performance of the company can AGI Greenpac is dedicated to Positive:
equity and opportunity  be enhanced by improving and promoting diversity, equity, and Enhance
Inclusion increasing the employee diversity in  inclusion through a comprehensive innovation and

terms of gender, age, ethnicity, etc.  policy that includes baselining drive financial
A diverse pool of employees can workforce diversity by gender and growth
Iea}d to enhanced prgblem—sqlving age. We strive to maintain a gender- Negative:
skills, improved efficiency. This . balanc.edAv‘vorkmg community Potential
could al‘so help our C‘ompa'ny with and prioritise creating an |nc|uAS|ve Reputational
gnhancmg‘lts reputational image by  workplace environment. We aim Damage
incorporating the culture of equity to ensure equal employment
and inclusivity. opportunities with competitive

compensation and benefits, fostering

an inclusive environment for all

employees.

5. Human capital Risk and Experienced and adept workforce AGI Greenpac conducts integrated Positive:
development opportunity members are a resource to talent management programmes Strategic

the Company. The difficulty in to ensure holistic development. In human capital
retaining and attracting the skilled addition to this, we also encourage management

workforce can negatively impact
the productivity, business goals,
ultimately lowering the retention
rates and increasing turnover costs.

personal development of employees
and workers by providing them
career path and succession planning
programmes. We also reward our
workforce with Star Performers
Awards, Marriage Gift Vouchers,
Happy Hours to keep employees
motivated and prioritise their mental
well-being. We provide a variety

of trainings to our employees and
workers including sustainability,
health & safety, and skill upgradation.

can significantly
improve
employee
productivity,
therefore
increasing
profitability and
overall financial
performance
Negative:
Potential
Reputational
Damage
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whether risk

Corporate Overview

or opportunity Rationale for identifying the

Statutory Reports

In case of risk, approach to adapt or

Financial Statements

Financial
implications of the
risk or opportunity
(Indicate positive
or negative

S.No. identified (R/0O) risk/opportunity mitigate implications)
6. Occupational  Risk and The implementation of occupational  AGI Greenpac ensures Occupational  Positive:
health and opportunity  safety measures is essential for AGI  Health and Safety through Ensures
safety Greenpac to prevent accidents and ISO 45001:2018 certification and uninterrupted
injuries, ensuring the well-being various employee benefits such as business activity
of all workers. Failure to prevent EHS training, transitioning to battery- Negative: Failure
these accidents can lead to severe operated forklifts to reduce noise, in the safety
consequences, including loss ‘of life, andaddressing unsafe cohdition's' management
material damage, and reputatlonal promptly‘ We are dgvelopmg policies system may lead
harm that could result in customer like paternity beneflt; famd wellness to the person-
loss. programmes to prioritise employee  1ourloss and
well-being. Regular feedback SUIVeYS  therefore impact
and plans to double safety training the productivity
hours are in process as an approach ¢ oy operations
to ensure safety of our workforce.
7. Human rights Risk and Violations of human rights can AGI Greenpac has implemented Positive:
opportunity  expose our Company to regulatory policies and procedures regarding Enhance
and legal challenges, coupled with human rights and a code of conduct, innovation and
severe reputational damage. This which are regularly updated through  uninterrupted
can ultimately lead to a loss of a human rights assessment. business
profitability and customer base. Additionally, we have established a operations
focused committee.to prioritise gmd Negative:
address all hgman rights cqmplamts. Potential to
We also proylde r.egular trainings impact the
on human rights issues to all our brand image,
employees gnd wgrkgrs to educate inability to retain
them on their basic rights. good talent and
regulatory fines
and notices, etc.
8. Business Risk and Adherence to the highest standards  AGI Greenpac fosters ethics, Positive:
ethics, Opportunity  of transparency and ethics are transparency, and accountability Compliances
compliance, important to achieve corporate through a comprehensive Code of negate the
and integrity governance excellence and in turn Conduct applicable to the entire possible
gain confidence of our stakeholders.  workforce. Our Whistleblower violations

Policy ensures a vigilant reporting
mechanism for stakeholders. Our
diverse Board of Directors ensures
varied perspectives and monitors
target setting for environmental
sustainability. Annual performance
evaluations are carried out,
considering financial and non-
financial metrics.

that can lead

to litigations,
regulatory fines,
or penalties

Negative:
Unethical
behaviour, non-
compliance and
violation in any
form may lead to
reputational risk,
loss of investor's
trust and brand
value
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Indicate
whether risk
Material Issue

or opportunity Rationale for identifying the

risk/opportunity

In case of risk, approach to adapt or
mitigate

Financial
implications of the
risk or opportunity
(Indicate positive
or negative
implications)

S.No. identified (R/0O)
9. Responsible  Risk and
Supply Chain Opportunity

Manufacturing of glass is heavily
dependent on the raw materials
like Soda Ash, Silica, and limestone.
Sourcing these raw materials
sustainably and responsibly can
minimize the environmental damage
from extraction, transportation

and can also results in lowering the
Scope 3 emissions of our Company.
Additionally, stringent regulations
regarding labour practices and
environmental damage can help
ensure compliance and avoiding
fines and legal issues.

Furthermore, lack of availability

of raw materials due to climate
uncertainties may lead to production
delay and price volatility of such
raw materials including funnel oil,
gas, and soda ash may also lead to
increased procurement costs.
Delay in adaptation of advanced
technologies to streamline the
supply chain can also pose a major
risk on the business and operation
of AGI Greenpac.

AGI prioritises sustainable
sourcing in its business activities
and operations. The Company is
developing a Company-wide policy
on sustainable sourcing, which
aims to ensure that all goods and
services procured, manufactured,
and delivered uphold the principles
of labour practices, human rights,
ethics, occupational health & safety,
and environment as defined in AGI
Greenpac's policies. All value chain
partners are encouraged to follow
the Company'’s Code of Conduct.
The Company is committed to
sourcing raw materials, products,
and services while maintaining a
balance between social, economic,
and environmental impacts.

The Company has developed
mines and crushing plants near

its manufacturing plants for input
materials. These mines and plants
provide livelihood opportunities

to the local community, ensuring
that the quality of the raw materials
is maintained and lowering
transport-related costs and carbon
footprint. Bulk Soda Ash has been
procured through Concur, which
aids in reducing frequent vehicle
movement and carbon footprint.

Positive:
Promoting a
responsible
supply chain can
enhance brand
reputation and
assist in avoiding
fines and notices
by ensuring
statutory
compliance

Negative: Non-
compliance with
environmental
regulations or
ethical labour
practices can
lead to fines

and penalties.
Disruptions
caused in value
chain or sourcing
of responsible
materials

can lead to
production
delays and
increase in costs

Section B: Management and Process Disclosures

This section is aimed at helping businesses demonstrate the structures, policies and processes put in place towards
adopting the NGRBC Principles and Core Elements.

Disclosure Questions

P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
Policy and management processes
1. a. Whether your entity’s policy/policies cover each Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
principle and its core elements of the NGRBCs. (Yes/
No)
b. Has the policy been approved by the Board? (Yes/ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
No)
c. Web Link of the Policies, if available Company Policies
Business Responsibility Policies
Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle-Blower Policy
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Executives
Integrated Management System Policy
AGI ESG Policy
2. Whether the entity has translated the policy into Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
procedures. (Yes / No)
3. Do the enlisted policies extend to your value chain Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

partners? (Yes/No)

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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https://www.agi-glaspac.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/02/AGI-IMS-Policy-22.pdf
https://www.agi-glaspac.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/07/AGI-ESG-Policy.pdf
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Disclosure Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 Pé6 P7 P8 P9
4. Name of the national and international codes/ DMF - Quiality Assurance for supply to US pharmaceutical market
certifications/labels/standards (e.g. Forest ISO 15378:2011 and 2017 - Quality Management System to provide

Stewardship Council, Fairtrade, Rainforest Alliance,
Trustee) standards (e.g. SA 8000, OHSAS, ISO, BIS)
adopted by your entity and mapped to each principle.

primary packaging material for medicinal products.

FSSC 22000 - Food Safety System

ISO 9001:2008 and 2015 - Quality Management System

ISO 14001:2015 - Environment Management System

ISO 45001:2018 - Occupational Health and Safety Management System
ISO 50001:2018 - Energy Management

5. Specific commitments, goals and targets set by the The entity is setting ambitious ESG goals and targets. One of their goals
entity with defined timelines, if any. is to become Net Zero by 2050. As a near-term goal, the entity aims to
reduce its carbon footprint and increase use of renewable energy by
2030.
6. Performance of the entity against the specific AGI Greenpac has initiated various measures to achieve its Net Zero

commitments, goals, and targets alongwith reasons in Commitment. In the subsequent years, the entity plans to disclose
case the same are not met. performance aligned with the additional ESG goals which are currently in
the process of finalisation.

Governance, leadership and oversight

7.

Statement by Director responsible for the business responsibility report, highlighting ESG-related
challenges, targets, and achievements (listed entity has flexibility regarding the placement of this
disclosure)

AGI Greenpac, a leading name in packaging, recognises the critical role of sustainability in today's world.

We believe that ESG practices are fundamental to our long-term success and the well-being of our stakeholders
and the same is reflected in our Company's ethos, shaping our goals and vision.

This year, we have taken a significant step by strengthening our ESG strategy and developing a roadmap. Our
renewed ESG strategy goes beyond compliance, focusing on collaborating with our stakeholders to achieve shared
ESG goals.

The foundation of AGI Greenpac's ESG vision is built on three core pillars: Environmental Stewardship, Empowering
People and Transparency & Accountability. The Company also takes proactive efforts towards promoting
resource efficiency and minimising waste generation, as exemplified by our Bhongir speciality glass facility
with Platinum Green Building certification and the Zero Liquid Discharge mechanism followed at all the plants
to treat wastewater. AGl has implemented various projects targeted at reduction of greenhouse gas emissions
at all the plants such as installation of Variable Frequency Drive (VFD) panels and utilisation of energy-efficient
equipment. Our environmental efforts are further enhanced by integration of solar heating systems and rainwater
harvesting initiatives. These efforts align with UN Sustainable Development Goals as well as with the country's
sustainable goals.

AGlis committed to fostering a safe, inclusive, and fulfilling work environment for our employees and communities,
upholding high ethical standards, and developing high quality products for our customers. Our empowerment
efforts extend beyond compliance related trainings and include human rights training and skill-upgrading
programmes. AGl Greenpac believes that strong human capital management is essential for achieving continued
success. Our talent management approach cultivates future leaders who can facilitate the Company'’s journey
towards sustainable growth.

We practice transparency and accountability, as one of our core values, in all our business practices. Aligned
with India’s sustainable development journey, we operate with unwavering integrity, ensuring our actions are
transparent and accountable. In addition to our ESG initiatives, we also launched our state-of-the-art Research
and Development (R&D) centre, well equipped with cutting-edge facilities such as collaborative labs and dedicated
space for sample testing. These strategic initiatives drive our commitment to delivering exceptional value to our
customers and designing technologies that have a positive environmental impact on the community.

This year serves as a foundation for our aspiring ESG goals and roadmap by actively seeking opportunities to
contribute to economic development as well as environmental and societal benefits. Through these efforts, we
aim to pave the way towards sustainable future through remaining deeply committed to driving sustainable growth
while creating positive impact on the environment and society.
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8.

Details of the highest authority responsible for implementation and oversight of the Business
Responsibility policy(ies).

At the highest level, the Board of Directors of the Company, led by the Chairman and Managing Director, plays a
crucial role as trustees to safeguard and enhance shareholder value by strategically supervising AGI.

As members, the Board ensures that the Company establishes clear goals aligned with shareholder value and
growth, consistent with its Sustainability commitments.

The Risk Management Committee at AGI Greenpac, comprising of Directors and Officials, oversees matters related
to sustainability. AGI has established a robust risk management process that helps us identify, treat, and mitigate
the risks impacting the business internally and externally across our operations. AGl's top management, through
the risk management framework, regularly monitors top risks and has helped us to stay ahead of the curve.

In addition to this, the Company undertakes and validates its risk appetite periodically and any new or emerging
risks are integrated into the risk management structure, enabling effective decision-making. The CSR Committee
of the Board reviews and oversees implementation of the sustainability activities of the Company on an annual
basis. In addition, the Committee and the Board also review the progress of implementation of the Company's CSR
Programmes, on an annual basis.

The Business Unit heads and Heads of Corporate Functions are accountable for implementing the Corporate and
Sustainability Policies of the Company within their respective functions and ensuring communication of these
policies to employees.

Does the entity have a specified Committee of the Board/Director responsible for decision-making
on sustainability related issues? (Yes/No). If yes, provide details.

Yes, AGI Greenpac's Risk Management Committee is responsible for overseeing sustainability related matters.
The committee comprises of Directors and Officials. The Company takes a proactive approach to managing risks
through establishing a well-defined risk management process for identifying, addressing, and mitigating the
potential risks impacting the business internally and externally across its operations. Through the risk management
framework, AGI's top management regularly monitors key risks, ensuring us to maintain a proactive approach for
addressing any future challenges. Additionally, we evaluate and review its risk tolerance regularly and integrate any
new and emerging threats into our risk management structure, allowing for informed decision-making.

10. Details of Review of NGRBCs by the Company:

Indicate whether review was undertaken by Director/ Frequency
Committee of the Board/Any other Committee (Annually/Half yearly/Quarterly/Any other - please specify)
Subject for Review P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9 P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
Performance AGI Greenpac reviews its policies on a periodic Periodically
against above or as needed. Throughout the assessment, the
policies and follow  effectiveness of the policies is assessed and any
up action required modifications to the policies and procedures
are implemented.
Compliance AGI Greenpac prioritises adherence to the existing Regularly
with statutory regulations and provides the Board of Directors with
requirements of the detailed reports for their review and verification.
relevance to the These reports include a Compliance report, Statutory
principles, and Compliance Certificates, and a Corporate Governance

rectification of any Compliance Certificate that's part of the Annual report.
non-compliances  All the compliance related information is tracked within

a detailed Management Information System (MIS). In
cases of non-compliance, the Company takes corrective
measures.

11. Has the entity carried out independent assessment/evaluation of the working of its policies by an

12. If answer to question (1) above is “No

external agency? (Yes/No). If yes, provide name of the agency.
No

" i.e., not all Principles are covered by a policy, reasons to be
stated:

Not Applicable

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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Section C: Principle Wise Performance Disclosure

This section is aimed at helping entities demonstrate their performance in integrating the Principles and Core Elements
with key processes and decisions. The information sought is categorised as “Essential” and “Leadership”. While the
essential indicators are expected to be disclosed by every entity that is mandated to file this report, the leadership
indicators may be voluntarily disclosed by entities which aspire to progress to a higher level in their quest to be socially,
environmentally, and ethically responsible.

PRINCIPLE 1 Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with integrity, and in a manner that is
ethical, transparent, and accountable.

The Company has earned the recognition and trust of its customers through its responsible corporate governance,
compliance, outstanding products, and customer service. The aim is to maintain the Company’s commitment and the
high esteem it has earned in the future. Regarding employee behavioural norms, AGI Greenpac's Code of Conduct lays
out the guidelines for an accountable, ethical, and transparent behaviour of its workforce. The entity's business partners
are also encouraged to comply with the Code.

Essential Indicators

1. Percentage coverage by training and awareness programmes on any of the Principles during the financial

year:
Percentage of persons in
Total number of trainingand  Topics/principles covered under the training respective category covered by

Segment awareness programmes held and its impact the awareness programmes
Board of Directors 1 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 100%

Requirements) Regulations
Key Managerial 1 SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 100%
Personnel Requirements) Regulations
Employees other than 759 Health & Safety, Sustainability, and 85%
BoD's and KMPs Technical, etc.
Workers 609 Health & Safety, Sustainability, and 90.3%

Technical, etc.

2. Details of fines/penalties/punishment/award/compounding fees/settlement amount paid in proceedings
(by the entity or by Directors/KMPs) with regulators/law enforcement agencies/judicial institutions, in the
financial year, in the following format (Note: the entity shall make disclosures on the basis of materiality as
specified in Regulation 30 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Obligations) Regulations, 2015 and as
disclosed on the entity’s website):

Monetary
Name of the regulatory/
enforcement agencies/ Has an appeal been
NGRBC Principle judicial institutions Amount (In3) Brief of the Case preferred? (Yes/No)
Penalty/ Fine
Settlement Nil Nil

Compounding fee

Non-Monetary

Name of the regulatory/

enforcement agencies/ Has an appeal been
NGRBC Principle judicial institutions Amount (In3) Brief of the Case preferred? (Yes/No)
Imprisonment . .
Nil Nil

Punishment

3. Of theinstances disclosed in Question 2 above, details of the Appeal/ Revision preferred in cases where
monetary or non-monetary action has been appealed:

Name of the regulatory/enforcement agencies/judicial
Case Details institutions

Not applicable Not applicable
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Does the entity have an anti-corruption or anti-bribery policy? If yes, provide details in brief and if available,
provide a web-link to the policy.

Yes, AGI Greenpac, being a responsible organisation, maintains zero-tolerance towards bribery. Our commitment
towards Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption practices is covered under the Ethics, Transparency and Accountability
Policy and the Code of Conduct. These policies apply to all employees and workers of AGI Greenpac, and its
business partners are encouraged to follow the Company's Code of Conduct.

AGI Greenpac has implemented proactive measures to combat bribery and corruption. Established a Vigil
Mechanism/Whistleblower Policy, providing a formal mechanism for Company Directors, Employees, and external
stakeholders to report unethical behaviour, suspected fraud, or violations of the Company’'s Code of Conduct.
This policy ensures the confidentiality of whistleblowers to protect them from unfair treatment, discrimination,
harassment, or retaliation. Further details about AGI Greenpac's

Vigil Mechanism/Whistleblower Policy can be found here.

Vigil Mechanism/Whistleblower Policy

Number of Directors/KMPs/employees/workers against whom disciplinary action was taken by any law
enforcement agency for the charges of bribery/ corruption:

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Directors Nil Nil
KMPs Nil Nil
Employees Nil Nil
Workers NA Nil

Details of complaints with regard to conflict of interest:

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Number Remark Number Remark
Number of complaints receivgd in relation to issues Nil Nil Nil Nil
of Conflict of Interest of the Directors
Number of complaints received in relation to issues Nil Nil Nil Nil

of Conflict of Interest of the KMPs.

Provide details of any corrective action taken or underway on issues related to fines / penalties / action
taken by regulators/ law enforcement agencies/ judicial institutions, on cases of corruption and conflicts of
interest.

Not applicable

Number of days of accounts payables ((Accounts payable *365) / Cost of goods/services procured) in the
following format:

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Number of days of accounts payables 92 68

Openness of business

Provide details of concentration of purchases and sales with trading houses, dealers, and related parties along-with
loans and advances & investments, with related parties, in the following format:

Parameter Meterics FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Concentration of a. Purchases from trading houses as % of total purchases Nil Nil
Purchases B .

b.  Number of trading houses where purchases are made from Nil Nil

c.  Purchases from top 10 trading houses as % of total

purchases from trading houses Nl Nil

Concentration of Sales a. Sales to dealers / distributors as % of total sales 5.96% 5.47%
Number of dealers / distributors to whom sales are made 102 118

c. Salesto top 10 dealers / distributors as % of total sales to 56 20% 5913%

dealers / distributor

Packaging Excellence, Responsibly.
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Parameter Meterics FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23
Share of RPT's a. Purchases (Purchases with related parties /Total )
Nil 0.01%
Purchases)
b. Sales (Sales to related parties / Total Sales 1.12% 3.10%
c. Loans &advances (Loans & advances given to related ) .
; Nil Nil
parties / Total loans & advances)
d. Investments (Investments in related parties / Total Investments Nil Nil

made)

Principle 2: Businesses should provide goods and services in a manner that is sustainable and safe

Essential Indicators

1.

Percentage of R&D and capital expenditure (capex) investments in specific technologies to improve the
environmental and social impacts of product and processes to total R&D and capex investments made by the
entity, respectively.

FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 Details of improvements in environmental and social impacts
Research and 5 . Annealing chamber and Desiccator cabinets to optimise the production
0.01% Nil ; . : -
Development process while also ensuring the quality and efficiency of the products.
Capex 2.66% 3.36% Allocating capex investments to optimise environmental processes

across all units and operations. Additionally, investing on safety and
well-being of employees.

a. Does the entity have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing? (Yes/No)

AGl's commitment to ESG, sustainable sourcing is an ongoing effort at AGI Greenpac. We are in the process of
developing a Company-wide policy on sustainable sourcing, which aims to ensure that all goods and services
procured, manufactured, and delivered uphold the principles of labour practices, human rights, ethics,
occupational health, safety, and environment as defined in our policies. Business partners of AGI Greenpac are
encouraged to follow the Company's Code of Conduct. AGlis committed to sourcing significant raw materials,
products, and services while maintaining a balance between social, economic, and environmental impacts.
Two such examples of this in practice at AGl Greenpac are below:

1. We have developed mines and crushing plants near its manufacturing plants for input materials. These
mines and plants provide livelihood opportunities to the local community, ensuring that the quality of the
raw materials is maintained and lowering transport-related costs and carbon footprint.

2. Bulk Soda Ash has been procured through Concur, which aids in reducing frequent vehicle movement and
carbon footprint

b. If yes, what percentage of inputs were sourced sustainably?

Through focused effort at AGI Greenpac today, 47% of the raw materials are sourced from sustainable suppliers.

Describe the processes in place to safely reclaim your products for reusing, recycling and disposing at the
end of life, for (a) Plastics (including packaging) (b) E-waste (c) Hazardous waste and (d) other waste:

Plastics (including packaging) The waste is segregated at source and further sent to authorised recyclers as per
State Pollution Control Board guidelines.

E-waste The waste is segregated at source and further sent to authorised recyclers as per
State Pollution Control Board guidelines.

Hazardous waste The waste is segregated at source and further sent to authorised recyclers as per
State Pollution Control Board guidelines.

Other waste -

At AGI Greenpac, we work with certified third-party vendors stationed at each plant location to manage and dispose
of both hazardous and non-hazardous waste. Our waste management process involves aggregating all waste
generated at various plant locations in designated areas, typically scrapyards. This waste is then inventoried and
disposed of in strict adherence to the guidelines set forth by the State Pollution Control Board (SPCB) or relevant
regulatory authorities.

Rejected glass and cullets from breakage are collected at AGI sites and also from other waste aggregators for size
reduction. This process includes through cleaning and washing of the cullets. These cullets are then re-used as an

Annual Report 2023-24

89



AGI Greenpac Limited

input material in the production process. AGI has also commissioned cullet and fine sorting machine at Bhongir
plant to improve the quality of the cullet.

4. Whether Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) is applicable to the entity’s activities (Yes/No). If yes,
whether the waste collection plan is in line with the Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR) plan submitted
to Pollution Control Boards? If not, provide steps taken to address the same.

Yes, the Extended Producer Responsibility applies to AGl Greenpac. The Company has filed application on EPR
portal and is awaiting confirmation from CPCB.

Principle 3: Businesses should respect and promote the well-being of all employees, including those in
their value chains

AGI Greenpac is deeply committed to respecting and promoting the well-being of all employees, both within its
organisation and throughout its value chains. The Company fosters an environment where all individuals, regardless
of caste, creed, gender, race, religion, or disability, have equal access to opportunities based solely on merit. This
commitment extends from recruitment practices to ongoing employment.

The Company prioritises the safety and well-being of its employees, ensuring a secure and hygienic work environment.
Comprehensive training, including induction and periodic sessions, is provided to equip employees with the knowledge
and skills to use protective equipment and identify and mitigate unsafe working conditions. Accident prevention is a
core focus, supported by a robust health and safety policy. Continuous investment in employee skill development is a
cornerstone of the Company's approach. Structured training, skill development programs are consistently implemented
to enhance employee capabilities; along with various initiatives to promote employee well-being.

Essential Indicators

1. a Details of measures for the well-being of employees:

Percentage of employees covered by

Health insurance Accident insurance Maternity benefits Paternity Benefits Day Care facilities
Category  Total (A) N“""Z;; % (B/ A) N“"":é; % (C/A) N“""z;; % (D/A) N““‘"(‘E; % (E/A) N““‘"(:; % (F/ A)
Percentage of Employees (Permanent Employees) covered
Male 1,162 1,162 100% 1,162 100% Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Female 19 19 100% 19 100% 19 100% Nil Nil 19 100%
Total 1,181 1,181 100% 1,181 100% 19 100% Nil Nil 19 100%
Percentage of Employees (Other than Permanent Employees)
Male Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Fermale Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

b. Details of measures for the well-being of workers:

Percentage of workers covered by

Health insurance Accident insurance Maternity benefits Paternity Benefits D